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Prof. M.S. Swaminathan
The witness was called in and he took his seat.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I welcgme you all to this sitting of Joint Parliamentary Committee on Plant
Varictics and Farmers Rights Bill. We are very fortunate to have Prof. Swaminathan today with us.
We had been to Chennai, to his Institute. We spent a lot of time there. Prof. Swaminathan has come
all the way from Madras to give evidence. Prof. Swaminathan, you were instrumental in framing this
bill or giving your opinion in framing this Bill. Your evidence will be of great importance. Not only
this committec but thc whole country needs him.

It is said well begun is half done. We are beginning with a great personality of this country
Prof. M.S. Swaminathan.



PROF. M.S. SWAMINATHAN: [ would like to express my gratitude to you and to the
hon. Members of this Committee for giving me this opportunity to share some of my own thinking on
this very important Bill which is so important to this country and the future of our agriculture. I
would like to congratulate the Ministry of Agriculture and the Government of India for preparing this
Bill which is fairly comprehensive. When it becomes an Act, this would be the first Act in the world
which simultaneously considers breeders’ and farmers’ rights. We would be the first country in the
world to protect the interests of the breeders, safeguarding and rewarding at the same time the
contributions of the farmers. I would therefore request the hon. Members that we should have this
Act on the statute as soon as possible. I also have a written submission. But I would like to go
through quickly a few important points. You were kind enough to visit us in Chennai. Several
hon. Members were there. I have read several comments in the newspapers and journals about this
subject. Whatever I am going to say, it takes into account some of the comments made in the
newspapers and journals without saying who said that.

In Chapter I, on definitions, I think, it is important for us to avoid confusion on the word
‘breeder’. Breeder means a person who has bred, discovered or developed-any variety. This definition
is correct. But some comments may be made almost to imply that farmer breeders are not in this
category. It does not made a distinction whether it is a scientist or a farmer. But it is matter of
consideration whether we should put it in the bracket — could be scicntist, could be a farmer, any
individual. It is better to define that. In the definition there is need for greater clarity. In page 3 of
the Act, farmer means any person who cultivates crops cither by cultivating the land himself or
through any other person and it includes a person who conserves and preserves severally or jointly
any wild species or traditional varieties. This is a very confusing definition. A farmer can be purely a
cultivator. Out of over 106 million farming families in our country, I would consider 80 to 90 million
will be its cultivators. But those who live in tribal areas, hilly arcas or in other areas like Koraput in
Orissa, you will find that they are also conserving bio-diversity which we call in situ on farm. People
who have conserved it are the ones who are going to get recognition and rewards from the National
Gene Fund. When we developed the concept of farmers’ rights, I was Chairman of the FIO Council.
This confusion has come because at that time the concept was those who are only farmer conservers.
Later, on in 1991, it was made necessary also to clarify the rights of cultivators. So, I would request
that to avoid any confusion we may put sub-categories to make it very clear that farmers who are
cultivators have their rights. Farm families, such as tribal women and rural women who have
preserved sceds of important varicties or wild species should be recogniscd and rewarded for their
work. So, the dcfinition should include both breeder and the farmer through it is implicd. We should

make it clcar.
For the farmers to categorise these two kind of privileges, the plant back right, kefging their own
sced, cnter into a limited exchange and those who should get reward and recognition under the

National Gene Fund.

hapter 2, page 3. This is on the composition of the authority. I think
this authority today is largely official authority with some of the Joint Sccretaries and others. Except
the Chairman others are all officials. I think it is very important arca. Therefore, we s!\ould have not
a bigger committee but some representatives of the cnvironmcnt, NGOs,' Sf:ed companies and farmcp
organisation, one or two farmers’ organisations and a National Corpmnsann for Women. As I said
carlier a lot of conservation is still being done by women in the hills, Hnmalayaft Western G!fats,,
Eastern Ghats, etc. So, gender dimension is very important in rcw.ards or {cc.og.nmon. I have given
some suggestions in my written submission. I will not take more time but it is important to have a
little wider representation. I have recommended that it should be enlarged to 15 members in order to
give some representation to the major stake holders, the famcm. the breeders and particularly the
gender dimension. Some women or consumers representatives should be there.

h I want to make a suggestion is, in the Authority item under the same Chapter 2,

ommittees as may be necessary, I would suggest that onc committce
If. One of the Standing Committees should be on the Farmers’ right.

My next comment is in C

Next one whic

the authority may appoint suc!: c
should be explicity in the Act itse
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The reason is this is the unexplored part of the Act. Breeders’ right is an international expericnce.
Everybody knows, UPOV has been amended four times over a period of 30 years. There is a lot of
experience but farmers’ right, which is not an individual farmer but community right, that requircs a
lot of clarity, articulation. Many issues will come. Therefore, I would suggest that one of the Standing
committees should be on the farmers’ right because then we can involve some more farmers and tribal
representatives should be there. In the other Bio-diversity Act, there is a provision for an agro-bio-
diversity sub-Committee. The draft is not before you but I have seen it. The new thing in this Act is
the farmers’ right. It is an uncharted territory. We are the explorers, the pioneers. So, we should do
it right and we should have a careful examination.

The next one I would like to suggest in Chapter 3, the question of Registrar General of plant
variety. It has not clarified how many registrars and for what purpose. My own feeling is, when we
develnp these registrars it should be for major group and not for geographical regions one for cereals,
oilseeds or pulses because thesc are all specialised ones. One must have Registrar dealing with some
specialisation of the problems of that group of plant; selt-polinated plants, cross-polinated plants like
jawar, bajra, maize where hybrids are there. But, I think one Registrar should be on farmers’ right
because that person whoever he or she will have to develop a lot of expertise in this area. Although
we will not spell it out but I would like to say, “Authority may appoint such number of Registrars as
it thinks necessary for registration of plant variety,” And then we add one sentence that, “That one
Registrar will specially for the farmers’ right”, so that we make it clear that we give importance to
farmers' right.

Next, Sir, is the new variegy. The world over four conditions are there, novelty, distinctiveness,
uniformity and stability. They are there in all the Acts of the world because they arc the oncs by
which authority will have to be judged. Here, in page 7 at the top, ‘‘Not withstanding anything
contained in sub-scction(I) no variety should be registered under this Act if such variety contains any
gene or gene sequence involving any technology including terminated technology which is injurious to
the lifc and health of human being, animals or plants although terminator has been used in order to
cnsure that farmers’ choice of keping seed is not gone, I would like to see one small sentence added
in the end, “...injurious to the life or health of human beings, animals or plants or restrict the
freedom of choice of farmers.” Our farmers should have the freedom of choice what variety will go.
That is also one of the farmers’ right. So, I would like to add that.

Page 8 is a very important chapter, the application of registration. 17(e) contains a complete
passport data of the parent lines from which the variety has been derived. This is very important for
the purpose of implementing the farmers’ breeder or farmers’ selectors right. I would like to add
here, “....from which the varicty has been derived including information relevant to the recognition of
the contribution of farmers conservers.” Later on I will point out that this Act is rather weak in terms
of the farmers conscrvers’ right because it puts the whole onus of reward an recognition to non-
governmental organisations. I think the breeder exists for the farmers and the breeders and farmers
are not the enemics. They are the friends and allies. They work for each other. Therefore, we should
put some responsibility on the part of the breeders to help in implementing the farmers’ right. It
should not be some NGO alone. We should add this sentence so that the breeder himself says that
this is the arca from where he has got this important gene. You should reward this community. So
long the breeder says it, there is no conflict. Today, later on it has been drafted in such a way, it is
almost going to bc a conflict between the breeders and the conservers which I think is a wrong
attitude. We should not create the impression that they are both working at cross purposes. I think it
is important that they are both fricnds.

The next point which I would like to make is at Page 11, Chapter 6, Registration of Essentially
derived variety. Under 22(7) ‘The rights of breeder of a variety contained in Section 28 shall apply to
a breeder of essentially derived variety provided that the authorisation by the breeder of initial variety
to the breeder of essentially derived variety may be subject to such terms and conditions as both
parties may mutually agree upon. This is quite correct. This is well worded. The point which I weuld
like to make is, the particular point talks only about breeder to breeder. I am adding here, “If
derived from a farmers’ variety the prior informed consent and benefit sharing arrangement will have
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to be entered into”. This is called for in the Bio-diversity Act. Prior informed consent of the farming
community and some agreement with them on benefit share is very important so that these two will
become mutually compatible. At the moment it talks only about getting one breeder. If I am the
breeder and another person takes my varicty, we have to mutually agree upon.

If I go to Koraput in Orissa or somewhere else and collect some material, that is my variety
which I am going to improve by adding one or two genes, I am saying that we must also take the
‘prior informed consent’ of the community and have a benefit sharing arrangement with that
community. The difference between the breeder and the community is very important. I am sure that
the Ministry of Law would be able to suitably draft that portion of the Bill. It is very imporant for
this Act. If the derived variety is from a farmers’ local land raco—sometimes they are called land race
or folk variety—it will be very important for horticulturists also for flowers, fruits and vegetables.
Then prior informed consent of the community has to be taken and benefit-sharing arrangements will
have to be entered into by that community. This is very important for this Bill. Otherwise, we will
have a major problem.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You are saying that prior informed consent of the farmers’ community is
required. For example, a formula is made and a variety is derived from the community by taking a
gene and doing something, in that case, we will have the prior informed consent of the community
and we should also have an agreement with those persons for benefit sharing. But, will it be

practically possible?

PROF. M.S. SWAMINATHAN: You have raised a very important point. When I am talking of
‘cssentially derived variety’ I have made a small modification here. I have added a few characters.
That is why, it is called ‘essentially derived variety’. Normally this problem comes only under
conditions where a variety is already protected and somebody is using that variety. This problem is
going to come in the other Act also. But who is the authority here? Is it the panchayat or the local
body in the case of North Eastern Region where there is no panchayat? This matter has to be worked
out by the administrative authorities. Even if we do not use the term ‘prior informed consent’, in
some cases the essentially derived variety may come from a research institution also.

MR. CHAIRMAN: When you bring a new variety, you may have to have prior informed
consent. But in the case of the community it will not be easy to do it; whether it is the whole
community or the panchayat, if we have to make a formula that this much share will go to them, even
if there is no term ‘prior informed consent’, they will have to have some percentage of benefit
sharing.

PROF. M.S. SWAMINATHAN: Even if we do not have ‘prior informed consent’, in this
particular case it will come only when the variety is protected. Otherwise, it will not come under
‘essentially derived variety'. It will come under the National Gene Fund. Under the title of }his Bill, I
am saying that in every case where there is farmers’ contribution, some method of recognition should
be there. We need not use the term ‘prior informed consent’. But this is going to be a serious
problem. The competent authority has to decide as to who is the authority, whe?her it is the
panchayat or the farmers. This is why I suggested a Standing Committee on Farmers' Rights and they

have to go into this matter.
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PROF. M.S. SWAMINATHAN: Sir, I think, the hon. Members have raised important
questions. As far as litigation is concerned, in this Act, registration of varictics and recognition need
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not create any litigation, except in terms of benefit sharing. That is the only area where this problem
may arise. The other areas are very clear. This problem may also come in the area of essentially
derived variety. Somebocly may say that it comes under the copyright Act. Today, even in regard to a
famous film, somebody is saying that it is his manuscript. This kind of a problem may come. But I
expect very little litigation in this particular Act. I do not think it is like land ownership or agrarian
reform. It is a straight forward recognition of varicties whether they are produced by farmers or
regular breeders.

I will now come to the arca of farmers' rights, that is, the farmers’ conservers’ rights. If you like
I will mention it in a few moments.

On page 12, under Chapter VII, clause 26(3) says:

“On receiving a claim under sub-section(2), the Authority shall send a copy of such claims
to the breeder of the variety registered under such certificate and the breeder may, on
receipt of such copy, submit his opposition to such claim...”

It is a very negative way of putting it. It should be:
“...submit his agreement...”

Or we assume that he is going to oppose it. That is why even earlier, I wanted to make it clear.
In the earlier case also, it is not a question of farmer versus breeder.

They are together. That is why I want to put the onus. The previous one says:

“Any person or group of persons or non-governmental organisation shall submit its claim
of benefit sharing of such variety in the prescribed form, in duplicate, within such period.”

This is all right. I want in the upfront that the breeder should also indicate his own assessment.
This is where I have got. If I am a breeder, I will be in the best position to say that this is where I got
the original variety. So, these people should get recognition and reward. That would be much more
authentic. The breeder is always going to submit his opposition. It should not be, say: ‘submit his
agreement or opposition, as the case may be'. Put it in a more positive way than in a negative way as
though one is, all the time, going to litigation and going to fight.

Now, the next one is Chapter V. Other pages are procedural ones. They are well drafted.

Then, I come to Chapter X, called ‘compulsory licence’. Unfortunately, compulsory licence is
already there. It has been given. I would like to see that the compulsory licence can also be by the
competent authority. That should really not be the authority — Plant Protection Authority. It has to
be the Government. The compulsory licence means, you are depriving the person, with the licence
denying to him some benefit. Therefore, it should be done by an authority which takes into
consideration the overall national good. Therefore, it can be because I have developed a variety
which is going to confer assistance to all pests. That means, it is very important for our food security.

Even the WTO says that you can deny import if it is going to affect your environment or food
security. I would like to sec that the authority is competent to say that it must be compulsory licence-
exclusive licence - it must be one which is different from the Plant Variety Protection Authority and it
should also include cither health security or food security of the country as one of the considerations.
It may be a medicinal plant which is very important for a particular discase. It may be not only
because the company is not producing the seed but we may also have to have it. We could not have it
separately for all the varieties in the 60’s. If every farmer had not become a seed producer, it spread
very fast. So, sometimes in the interests of the food security of the country or the health security of
the country, it may be necessary to have compulsory licence. But this should be very carefully thought
of. I am segregating all authorities. It should be the Ministry of Agriculture or some other authority
which is approved for this purpose. But the greatest confusion in this Act is coming because in the
whole question of compulsory licence, one should not have included clauses 48 onwards. Clauses 48
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onwards deal with farmers’ rights—rights of communities. That deserves a title by itself and a chapter
by itself because it is a new component of this Act.

Internationally also, there will be a confusion. Even they will get confused if you can view clause
48 onwards which are the rights of communities under compulsory licence. It has nothing to do with
compulsory licence. So, it should have a separate title:

“Any person or the group of persons (whether actively engaged in farming or not) or any
governmental or non-governmental organisations may on behalf of any village or local
community, fall in any centre notified in the Official Gazette by the authority in this behalf with
the previous approval of the Central Government, any claim attributable to the contribution of
the people of that village or local community in the evolution of any variety for the purpose of
staking a claim on behalf of such village or local community.”

Now, I would request that these two or three clauses are carefully considered in the light of what
I have stated here. The purpose of this is that we want to recognise the local communities. Here, I
have also stated it. Upfront I am putting across that the breeder has also a responsibility alongwith his
passport information to indicate where he got the main material from. That breeder's authentic
information will also be important for us. So, we do not put the NGO versus the breeder or some
other person. They can all help.

What we want is that we want to recognise and reward. The purpose is that we want to
encourage the farming communities to continue to preserve diversity. They are maintaining a number
of varieties which are becoming important sources of resistance factor genes. It is called in situ on
farm conversation. We want to revitalise and also invigorate in situ on farm conservation by giving
explicit recognition and reward to the system of conservation. We have in situ conservation by any
department — Forest Department — and ex situ conservation again by Government Departments like
the National Bureau of Genetic Resources, Botanicul Gardens. In-between is the commuity
conservation. This is the one which has not been recognised. The National Parks and protected arcas
are recognised. The Gene Bank of MBPGR is recognised and supported by Government. The one we
are not supporting are the people’s conservation, the community conservation or the farmer's
conservation. So, the conservation is a continuum. It is a continuum in situ, ex situ. In-between is the
community conservation. We are trying in this clause to recognise and reward those contributions. So,
my first submission is that it should have a separate chapter, called, “Farmer Conserver’s Right,
Farmer’s Rights” and bring in all these in a proper way again, not putting only breeder’s opposition
and so on but making it to facilitate.

The hon. Member mentioned rightly. Let us not give too many loopholes for unneccessary
litigation. Therefore, it is important. I would like to suggest that this should all consolidate under a
title called farmers' rights.

My next submission is about Chapter 12—National Gene Fund.
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DR. M.S. SWAMINATHAN: I will just finish the Gene Fund and come back to the hon.
Member’s comments. Regarding Chapter 12, my submission is that the National Gene Fund will not
be a very big fund. It will not be in the way in which it is going to be collected now. I will be happy if
a few million rupees come in each year and not very much more. It will not be a large Fund.
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Therefore, it should be exclusively used for rewarding this community conservation, that is, the
farmer conserver’s rights.

It should not be used for end 2000.

“The expenditure for supporting conservation and sustainable use of genetic resources
including in-situ and ex-situ collections.”

Government is already supporting them. National Burcau of Plant and Genetic Resources
requires many crores of rupees every year. This money will not be very large unless the hon. Minister
considers my earlier suggestions. Under the Agricultural Produces Act, we have one per cent cess for
the National Gene Fund which will only be used to recognise and reward the contributions of local
farmers for conservation. They are maintaining a lot of diversities whether it is arid zone or desert
arca, or whether it is Ladakh or Leh or North-Eastern region. My submission to the hon. Committee
is that this National Gene Fund should be entirely used for the purpose of recognising and rewarding
the conservation ethics of the local communities. It is because the amount of money will be small, and
if it is distributed in the form of a fund, then we will have a very little for community conservation.
So, this is important which today is an unrecognised part. That is one thing which has to be now
maintained, preserved, and encouraged.

So, my request under the National Gene Fund is that we may think of augmenting this fund and
see this cess and additional provision of cess also are necessary or not. After one or two years of
experience, we find that the fund is not cnough to meet the cost of the administration of the fund
itself, namely, salary, etc. Then, we have a very little left for the farmers’ rights.

I think I have referred to the farmers’ rights. I think it is already there, namely the right to kecep
plants and seeds, and enter into a limited exchange in the neighbourhood. Farmers of two groups who
can keep their own seeds and plants with them and the other is selectors conservors or selectors
germplasm. This is to be recognised by the National Gene Fund. In this regard, I have already
requested the Standing Committee of the Authority of Farmers’ rights and I have also referred to the
obligations of breeders to provide information relevant to farmers’ rights. It is because farmers and
breeders are friends and allies in the conservation movement. May I request the hon. Member—as I
started hearing a little later—to kindly to your question?
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PROF. M.S. SWAMINATHAN: Sir, the hon. Member’s question was about the communities
working together. Harmony within the communities is very important. Supposing a community is
eligible for Rs. 1 lakh, then what will happen is that the community will have to decide what kind of
community benefit it may have for harvesting, storage and so on. It will be for the benefit of the
entire community. I have caljed this fund as the Community Gene Fund, not National Gene Fund. In
Orissa, we have a data base for Intellectual Property Rights. They are now eligible for Rs. 3 lakh
from the National Gene Fund. It is up to them what they want to do with this Rs. 3 lakh. The
community will have to decide in what way the fund should be utilised. There should not be any
conflict. Whatever decision they take, that should be a collective decision. I do not want the
Community Gene Fund to be diluted for various purposes. It should be meant for helping the tribal
and rural families for conservation which I call unrewarded part of the spectrum. So, I share with you

.
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that nothing should be done to descredit the farmers. We should ensure that the final draft brings out
the community. If you want to add a sentence, then you add this, namely “The use of Gene Fund by
the community will depend upon the community benefits™. It should be left to the community to do
whatever they want to do.

SHRI SHARAD PAWAR: I have a question regarding the composition of authority. You have
made a suggestion that there should be representatives from the women's organisation and the
National Commission for Women. I would like to have some more details on this suggestion. In this
Bill, there are many issucs which relate to agriculture. What is the special reason for having
representatives from women's bodies?

Regarding farmers’ dcfinition, Section 31 is not enough. Here is stated:

“Nothing contained in this Act shall affcct the right of a farmer to save, use, exchange, sharc
or scll his farm produce of a varicty protected under this Act:

Provided that a farmer shall not be entitled for such right in case where the sale is for the
purposc of reproduction under a commercial marketing arrangement.”

This provision is not enough.

PROF. M.S. SWAMINATHAN: The first question is about National Commission for Women. [
thought if the authority had also to bc kept then we have to have their representation. I have scen
who is dcaling espccially with agriculture. So, I thought, one member of the National Commission
could look after thec women's interests. All said and done, much of the conservation work is done by
women. If you kcep a representative of Dcpartment of Bio Technology and other Dcpartments, |
think, in order to cnsure that the gender dimension is not forgotten, the National Commission should
tuke care of the interest of women since half of the farming families are women. They will have to
develop their own methods as to how to include them. The tribal arca is very important because
much of the diversity, North-Eastern Region, Western and Eastern Ghats are still preserved by tribal

people. The cssential point is how do you do it.

You talked about 35. I agree with you and I think that point is well drafted, so I have no
additional suggestions.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: I have a number of question. You pointed out about the
community rights. This Committee is working under a serious handicap because another Bill on Bio-
diversity is in the pipcline by the Ministry of Environment. We just do not know what the Bill will
contain. There are many things in this Bill which will have implications for the other Bill. Since, we
do not have that Bill, it is difficult to say how much community rights will be protected through this.
So, my onc of the suggestions is to rcquecst the Government to put the other Bill also under the
purview of this Committce so that we judge them togcther. Now, the question is whether we need
two Bill or one. My fecling is that one will do and the Ministry of Environment will dcal with bio-
diversity and all that. [ do not know what is your suggestion in this regard. How can we avoid this
difficulty? Onc could be to postpone the final document of this Bill and wait unless we get the other
Bill or we could incorporate the common elements in both.

In this Bill, you will sec that the period of registration or patent is 15 years for crops and 18
years for trees. Now, given you experience, how long it takes for a breeder to develop a varicty and
how long it takes for him to rcap the benefits? I am saying this because the period should not be
more than what is necessary. My fccling is that 15 years and 18 years are too long. It can be S ycars
or 8 years. On this point, I would like to have your technical judgement. What is the appropriate time

period for the purposes of registration, etc.
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The other point relates to the innovations or development made by institutions. It is not always
the individuals but universities and research institutions also. In that situation, with your experience
you will be able to tell us how one can delineate specific contribution of the individual and how
registration can benefit him. If we give patent rights to the institutions then what will happen to the
individual’s rights. So, one has to work out the community rights with the individual’s rights. How can
this be done to ensure that the institutions and individuals are not deprived of their own rights and
the individuals are not driven away to go to the multinationals because their contributions are not
recognised.

How can we make a farmer sced breeder? In this Bill, what we have said is that the farmer has
to register his seed with the authority if he can satisfy four criterion—novelty, distinctness,
standardisation and uniformity. Given your experience, do you think that the farmers anywhere in
India would be able to satisfy these? If not then would not this only benefit the big companies? If we
want the small farmers to get the benefits then how can this definition be changed?

Another point is about the issue which came out during our discussions in the Ludhiana
University. There the scientists talked about prime varieties. But now in the germplasm do we need a
separate kind of a statement about the rights? If that is the case then what should be the definition to
demarcate germplasm? What they said is that for economic purposes this definition is applicable but
on that basis they wanted to make some distinction between the two.

Lastly, I would dwell on the farmers’ rights. At the very beginning of our discussion in the first
meeting some of us suggested that there should be a separate chapter on farmer’s rights. It was
accepted by the Committee. The problem is what is to be put there.

I have seen a Bill which has been devised by some African country and it has been sent to us by
somebody. They have a section on farmers’ rights in that Bill. My feeling is that it is not adequate.
We may add one or two more things in that. But we should draft our own for the benefit of the
farmers. We have to do that and then we need much more concrete kind of support from people of
your stature. If you can talk to your colleagues and then devise some actual wordings which do not
have legal and other implications then the Committee would benefit from this. We have been asking
for this chapter on farmers’ rights but the question is what should be there to achieve our goal.

Cn that point, I am not absolutely clear. I will be very much grateful if you could give your reply
to my questions.

PROF. M.S. SWAMINATHAN: Sir, the hon. Member has raised several questions. I will go by
the same order.

Sir, the first suggestion of the hon. Member is that in the Bio-Diversity Act and in the Plant
Variety Act, there should be harmony among them and the same Joint Committee should examine
this. It is up to this Committee and Parliament to decide. I fully endorse this suggestion. It is very
appropriate so that we can ensure that both are reinforcing and there is no conflict among them. This
is my personal view. So, I support your point.

.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: Can these two acts be brought together?

PROF. M.S. SWAMINATHAN: No, this Act cannot be one for the simple reason that in the
Preamble, it is clearly stated, ‘And whereas India, having ratified the said Final Act—That is Uruguay
round of multilateral trade negotiations—should, inter alia, make provision for giving cffect to
sub paragraph (b) paragraph 3 of article 27 in part II of the trade related intellectual
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property rights....." So, this has come out of an obligation under TRIPS. That is under CBD. That
looks at bio-diversity as a raw material. Here, you are talking about the finished products, varictics
which have been developed out of bio-diversity. So, these cannot be made into one act. All that
TRIPS has stated is that it should be a satisfactory sui generis system. They have not defined as to
what is ‘satisfactory sui generis system’ but it is widely understood that it is either UPOV 1978 or
1991. Although in the TRIPS negotiation, there is no word about UPOV but UPOV has been
accepted. It is an inter-governmental body. Sir, in my personal view, the developing countries can
become the members of UPOV and they can change UPOV. But, today it has been exclusively ‘one
country, onc vote organisation’ like UN organisation. Our strategy should be that all the developing
countrics join it and change the character of UPOV to look after the interests of both the breeders
and the farmers.

Your second question is about the duration of protection. You are quite right that in today's
world with bio-technology and so on, new varicties are coming at a faster rate. The farmers will
always go for the best available varicty. I would consider this period of 15 years to be an upper limit.
There is no harm in giving the protection. I may hold a patent. I may put it in my bio-data that I
have got five patents but nobody might take that patent. Similarly, I may say that I have the right,
which is protected. What is important for a breeder is essentially derived variety. For 15 years, he will
have the protection. If I use his varicty for breeding, then he will be eligible under the essentially
protected variety. For example, on information technology if I hold a patent, even within two years,
it is going to be out of date. Nobody is going to buy it. So, science is progressing so fast. The farmers
will only take the latest variety and will not go for the old variety. It will be important for the brecder

for the esscntially derived varicty protection.

Fruit trees, as has becn rightly mentioned, has a longer duration. You can make it 12 years or 15
years. I would not argue too much there because to some extent it is theoretical, and it is only an
outer limit of protection. But if you have got a dynamic breeding organisation, they will go on
releasing varicties. Here, you have mentioned about Ludhiana or ICAR. If you go and attend the
annual All India Co-ordinatcd Workshops, you will notice that every year they are releasing new
varictics. So, new varicties will come. What is important for the farmers is the best available variety.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: It can be scven ycars for varictics and 15 years for trees.

PROF. M. SWAMINATHAN: Most of the countries provide 15 years. So, there has to be some
kind of conformity with some broad international guidelines. No breeding organisation will wait for

that longer. They will release a varicty quickly as a replacement variety.

The third question is about the relative contributions of institutions and individuals. I mecan, I
could have done nothing in my life if PUSA Institute is not there. You have to have the institution
which acts as the mother. ICAR provides you the support. It can be a company, which provides the
support. The hon. Director General of ICAR may be able to say what are the policies of CSIR. Even
if you take a patent, so much goes to thc inventor and so much goes to the institution. Say, Punjab
Agricultural University develops a patent for its own border and region and gets Rs. 1 lakh as loyalty,
then a sum of Rs. 50,000 gocs to the breeder and another Rs. 50,000 goes to the institution. This will
have to be done under the auspices of the Indian Council of Agricultural Rescarch. They may have to
develop a national policy as regards sharing the benefits. Otherwise, it could be very disruptiv; also.
A good varicty or a plant becoming successful depends on the breeder, pathologist, entomologist and
others. I would leave it to the institution ethics. The institution and the individual have to devclop a

mcthodology by which the bencfits can be shared between them.
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PROF. M. SWAMINATHAN: That is why, in the case of farmers, I mcntioned that if the
benefit goes to an individual, you will have the problem, and if it goes to the community, then there

is no problem.
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SHRI ONKAR SINGH LAKHAWAT: Can this Act be rcduced in 12 sections only so that the
rules can be framed later to suit the farmers in the country? If we insert only 12 sections, then we can
save our scicntists, brceders and also our technology.

PROF. M. SWAMINATHAN: That can be under the rules. You are right.

The next question is, how can a farmer become a breeder? Can the farmers satisfy the criteria of
novelty, ctc.? Now, obviously many farmers are outstanding farmers. We had a whole session in the
last Crop Science Congress held in New Delhi. There was a whole session on farmers. This was
particularly so in horticultural plants, vegetables, fruits and flowers. Even he may not be a formal
brceder but we call they see in eye. You have to have winners spotting the winner. Many people are
closc to the carth. The farmers are close to the carth. If you look at all the breeds of cattle, whether
it is rati or badavari or buffalo, many of them have developed as inputs over a period of time. So, I
would not undcrestimate the capacity of the farmers. That is why, I am suggesting that a special look
into the varictics is necessary. Today, in all the Institutes of ICR or the consultative groups, they use
the words, ‘participatory breeding’. Participatory breeding mcans that the brceder and the farmer
work togcther to develop a variety. And that is now becoming very important for a sustainable
agriculture so that you do not have one variety covering millions of acres. So, participatory breeding
is taking place more and more. Most of the institutions are adopting it and the farmers and thc
breeders are working together. So, I do not see any problem in farmers becoming very good
breeders. Many time, they will be better breeders because they live close to the carth, and they can
spot the winncr very casily.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: How can they satisfy these four conditions?

PROF. M. SWAMINATHAN: The conditions can be easily satisficd so long as you purify your
matcrial—pure varicty, novelty, etc. That has to be done. That is not difficult. Participatory breeding
of the Universities should help the farmers.

What I am trying to say is that the breeders and the scientists will have to work with the farmers
and help them. That is an ethos which is growing now not only in our country but also in the world as
a wholc. So, with sustainable agriculture, it has become very important that the agricultural scientists
and the farmers work together, not only in breeding, agronomy but everywhere. Feeding the plant is
as important as brcathing. Your next question is, germplasm versus varicty. Germplasm will be
considercd under the Bio-diversity Act. This is only a varicty. Varicty means novelty, purity, etc. So,
this is diffcrent from a germplasm which is a pool of material from which a variety is developed. So, I
do not sce any conflict. Regarding your first point relating to Bio-diversity Act, the Committee may
consider both of them. That is very important so that there is harmony.

Coming to your last point on farmers’ right, should there be a separate chapter and how to plant
them, my suggestion is to avoid ambiguity, within the 12 chapters, we give one because romewhere
the farmers’ rights are coming under the compulsory licensing which is a wrong place for it to be
there. It is coming in some other place. Since it is a unique Act in terms of combining plant variety
and protection of farmers’ rights, it is better to have a chapter in which you bring all those items to
avoid any confusion. I am talking about farmer conserver’s right. What are their rights? How to
recognise them? Who can ask for it? What is the methodology? Different sections in this Act could be
pooled together and put together. If the Chairman permits me, I will be happy to submit a note on
this separatcly.

MR. CHAIRMAN: This is*what all the Members today feel about it. I spoke to the Secretary
also in the morning. You try to frame a separate chapter. We will bring all the clauses: together and
also some other important things you just suggested. We will bring it together. Please give that note.
Thank you very much.

PROF. M.S. SWAMINATHAN: | am really grateful to you.
(The Witness Then Withdrew)
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WITNESS EXAMINED
1. Shri K. Rajan, IAS (Retd.), Mumbai.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Shri Rajan, you are welcome. Shri Rajan is a retired IAS officer. At present, he
is in Mumbai. Please start you briefing.

SHRI K. RAJAN: I thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, for inviting me for giving oral evidence. I
am also grateful, actually, for my comments being invited. I have sent a small note. Prima facie, the first
thing that I would like to say is that this Bill is extremely important because it is necessary to be
introduced. May be, it could have been introduced carlier. As I mentioned in my note earlier, the
concepts of plant breeders’ rights have been thought of actually in India even way back in 1968 when the
Seed Review Team made its recommendation. Of course, at that time, it was felt that that was not the
opportune time and after that, if there would be progress, we should have these plant breeders’ rights.
India has done a tremendous amount of work actually in the ICAR and through the public rescarch
system. Many varieties have come which has ushered in the kind of quantum jumps that actually, we see
in productivity. When the world is talking about the TRIPS, I think actually now it is time that the works
done within the country are put on a sounder footing and that our varicties need not become availale to
everybody. The other varieties are not going to come. There is this kind of reciprocity. On this basis, of
course, when we are talking of this, it is also included in the article 26 of the TRIPS agreement. We
decided to go in for this Sui generis legislation which I have already welcomed. I have made a few
suggestions on the particular aspects of the Bill. I would like to comment on a few of those things.

In terms of the function of the National Authority, I thought we need to look at it again. We need to
look at certain functions which have been spelt out in the Bill like, for example, the complusory licensing.
I was wondering whether the compulsory licensing should not be the function of the State itself, that is,
the Government, rather than the Authority. It is because the Authority’s primary job is to consider cases
for granting breeders’ rights, to look at the cataloguing process of varieties and recognition of the work
done by the community in natural selection process. But varieties have come as a result of work done by
the communities. Therefore, they need to be preserved. They need to recognise the work which have
been done by the farmers themselves or a group of farmers. Generally, in terms of recognising the work
being done, in terms of evolution of varieties, there is a whole lot of function which will devolve upon the
National Authority. I was wondering whether in that kind of a context, this compulsory licensing,
especially on two grounds, namely non-availability of seed or seed being highly priced, should really
become the function of the Authority or should it be the function of the Central Government. The
authority is empowered actually. The Parliament empowers the national authority.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: What is wrong in it?

SHRI K. RAJAN: I thought it would detract from the Authorities manufacturer because for taking a
decision on availability of seeds or pricing, a whole lot of information is required.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: They will collect the information. Why not?

SHRI K. RAJAN: That will have to be collected through the Government. After all how do they get
the information about the availability of the seeds? This has to flow from the ficld such as, the
Directorates of Agriculture in the States and the Commissioner of Agriculture here. Central Government

is better suited to take a decision on these points.

SHRI SHARAD PAWAR: We would like to have a little more explanation on this. I can appreciate
your loyalty to the Central Government. You are still working in the private sector. Still your loyalty
continues to the Government of India. It is a good thing. But we would like to have a little more

explanation on this.

SHRI K. RAJAN: I was looking at the question of Authority constituted by the Act, and the rule of
Central and State Governments.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It will add to confusion and duplicity. It is better if it remains with the authority
itself. Or, if it is not, as Shri Pawar has tried to explain, why it should not be point-wise, one by one? Tell
us what are the things against it.

SHRI K. RAJAN: With reference to the primary function of the authority, which is recognition of
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new varieties, there is a whole range of issues. They will arise which the authority will have to
consider on a day-to-day basis before it takes a final view whether a variety should be registered or
not. Actually, there is also an entire system of cataloguing. Therefore, the volume of work which
the authority will be required to do while taking a decision to register a new variety will increase.
There are many other things. How do you register a new varicty?

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: We want the authority actually to develop such skills. They can
set up an information system.

They can develop the skill of coming to a judgment. The Authority would be almost an
autonomous body. So the judgment to which the Authority will come, would be respected for that
reason because it would be a more detached kind of a decision. If you give it to the Government,
then there would be allegations of political patronage, etc. All those issues might come. If it is the
Authority, it would be more respectable.

SHRI K. RAJAN: I entirely agree with you. As far as registration process is concerned, to
take a decision whether a varicty should be registered or not; whether it should have gone to the
Registrar, it is an extremely important thing. That gives the plant breeders right as to what work
the community has done. So, a tremendous amount of information will come.

MR CHAIRMAN: Who makes the administrative’ decision that it should have been with the
Government and not with the Authority?

SHRI K. RAJAN: Not with the Authority because that is the question. You have to collect
information fFen We fiem, wgi fmm? what is the total requirement, demand assessment? Even as it
is, actually, having worked in the Government, I know that the assessment of demand for seeds
itself is a complex problem and then to look at the availability.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: The complex thing the Government will do and the simple thing
the Authority will do.

SHRI K. RAJAN: Compulsory licensing is a smaller aspect of a much larger system that you
are placing in vogue. I will read out clause 12 sub-section (2) about the National Register of Plant
Varieties.

“Subject to the superintendence and direction of the Central Government, the register
shall be kept under the control and management of the Authority.”

I think, to my mind, this is the most important function. The Central Government has actually
made rules under the rule making power. I do not know as to whether the Authority requires any
direction from the Government. I think, this clause, perhaps, to my mind, appears not very
relevant. Once the Act is passed, the National Authority is empowered actually to Register
varieties. We also laid down under what guidance or directions actually the rest of Register will be
maintained. For example, the issue of criterion. Then, where is the question of Central Government
directing the Authority? I think that will be a day-to-day kind of interference. That is the point
which Dr. Dasgupta has mentioned. The Authority should be fully empowered. This is my second
point.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It is a good point. Please proceed.

SHRI K. RAJAN: Actually, in terms of functions of the Authority and the role of the
Registry, if you look at the prbcess, it looks as though that in some cases, the Registrar can take a
final decision. I think, it must be made abundantly clear all decisions whether to register or not to
register would lie essentially with the National Authority. It must formally come before the
Authority. I think, there are clauses giving different impressions. So, I think, it needs to be worded
that all final decisions will be taken by the National Authority only.

MR. CHAIRMAN: So, no discretion should be there with the Registrar. g
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) .§HRI K. RAJAN: He functions under the Authority, so where is the question of his taking a
ecision.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is right.

SHRI K. RAJAN: The other point was with reference to the varicty of registration. Clause 14
says that once a variety has been registered, every three years it can be renewed. But it also says that
the total aggregate period for registration, in case of trees and wines, should 18 years, in other cases
15 years and extent varieties 15 years. I do not know whether this is really necessary. Why is this
period of three years and periodically being renewed? Authority has power to cancel registration.
There are adequate reasons in public interests to cancel the registration. The Authority has the
power. ® 7 @@ ¥ dgse frmn W)

It more or less follows the licensing kind of provisions. Even in the case of cars, there is a
provision of 14 to 15 years at one go for registration. Why have this provision actually of renewal
after three years?
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MR. CHAIRMAN: I agree as well as most of the Members will agree that the Authority has the
power to cancel the registration or reject it. Then, reviewing it after three years will lead to
corruption, etc. The best course is once a thing is registered, then if there is any complaint or
anything, then that can be cancelled. So, you- are right.

SHRI K. RAJAN: Not actually review. Please see the word how it has been worded. It shall be
valid for three years and may be renewed or further renewed as the case may be, on payment of fees.
I do not know as to whether we should have a system where we will ask renewal after every three

years.
MR. CHAIRMAN: They are not paying. They can ask for it.

SHRI K. RAJAN: Further the clause provides for registration for 15 years from the date of
notification of that varicty under the Seeds Act. Section 5 of the Seeds Act enables the Central
Government to notify the varieties of crops. What we should be conccrned with the Release of
varicties. We have to concepts. One is not recognised under the Seeds Act. We have a system of
releasing of varicties and we also have a system of notification of varicties. In fact, unless a variety is
notified, it does not come under the provisions of the Seeds Act at all. You cannot do any quality
control enforcement, etc. What is more important is the decision that a variety which is new, which is
different from other varieties, which is of your criteria that you are mentioning here of distinctiveness,
uniformity, stability. These are the decisions which are taken at the time of release of a variety. After
a variety has been released and being marketed, and if we feel that the quality control enforcement of
that variety is a must to protect the interests of farmers. T R ¥H et = )

But Release proceeds after the notification. If the fecling actually is that since ‘Release’ not
covered under the Seeds Act, therefore, the word ‘release’ should not be used we need to re-examine
this aspect. I am not very sure that this is the correct way of looking at it. 35 fioe Twam W Ref

Exol

There was State Varicty Relcase Committee and at the Central Government level CVRC, mainly
headed by either the Secretarics of State Governments or the DDG, ICS ICAR system. We release
all these varieties after secing the multi-location trials. The variety was not rclcased just because some

persons wanted to release the variety.
It was only on the basis of three years testing and consideration by a large group qnder the
CVRC or the SVRC that the varicties were released. Just because a varicty has not been notified, not

to include that variety and to make it available frecly, to my mind, dgcs not appear to be correct.
After the Seeds Act, 1968, everything has become official. These committees were brought under the
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contact of the Seeds Act. But these SVRCs and CVRC were there even prior to the Seeds Act. The
Central Variety Release Committee has now become the Central Sub-Committee on Release of
Varieties. That is a statutory thing, though the word ‘release’ is not mentioned in the Seeds Act.
When the concept of release, more or less, has been recognised, why not make use of this provision
for enabling ‘Released’ varicties be treated as extant Varieties. When the release is done, even if the
quantities are not very large, or when some State Governments did not want the notification and
quality enforcement, still I think the varicty may be very useful in certain other context or it can
become part of a breeding material for another variety. If it becomes an essentially derived variety, it
will be called a new variety, unless it has been registered. So, to my mind, I think we need to look at
this question. We should ecither say varicty released or varicty which has been notified. I think we
may re-examine this issue. If you think that it is possible without difficulty that we recognise the
released variety, then let us actually treat them as extant variety. I know of several cases where
varieties were released initially but were not notified. So, merely because it may not have been
notified, why should we forego that benefit?

The other point is regarding “licensees or breeders other than compulsory licensing”. In certain
scenarios even without resorting to the compulsory licensing provision, a breeder is likely to appoint
an agent or a licensee and give him the right to produce, subject to an agreement. Why should the
Authority get involved in that, except for the fact that if he is given such a power, that power should
be recognised somewhere? But it appears that the National Authority and the Rcgistrar, all get
involved in disputes between them. A breeder actually releases some variety and appoints some agent
to multiply the seeds. Why should we get involved if there is a dispute betwcen the two of them? The
only thing is that the licensee entering into agrcement be required to get this noted by Authoritics.
There are so many clauses, which look as though somehow the National Authority is going to
adjudicate in the dispute between the two parties, which is purely internal to them. Why can’t those
matters be scttled outside the Authority and scttled in courts?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Maybe, to reduce the chance of exploitation.

SHRI K.RAJAN: If he (a breeder) thinks that he is going to fear exploitation, he will not give
the licence at all. It is not compulsory licensing. Compulsory licensing is different. If he wants to
multiply and instead of doing it himself he says that he will give it to Mr. A to produce it for him,
and then if there is a dispute between them, why should the National Authority come into the
picture?

SHRI BIPLAB DASGUPTA: I think it is only because there is an asspmption—it may be right,
may be wrong, you can correct me—that a breeder until now has basically been a big company. The
agent is a small man. So, if there is a dispute between the breeder and the agent, the breeder being
very powerful, can exploit the agent.

MR. CHAIRMAN: As I said, here are chances of exploitation. You are right that we should try
to reduce our interference. What do you suggest should be done? Should it be left to the breeder how
he enters into the agreement with the agent?

SHRI K. RAJAN: Yes, Sir. But this is not true as far as compulsory licensing is concerned;
compulsory licensing is a totally different bargain.

The next point is with reference to the surrunder of varieties. If you look at Clause 35, a breeder
can surrender the variety which has been released. Then, in sub-clause (3), it says “Any of such agent
or licensee may, within the prescribed period after such notification give notice to the Registrar of his
opposition”. Once we have given the recommendation and thereafter if he surrenders and that
surrender is accepted, then the variety becomes free. Then why do we get involved in the dispute
between the licensee and the agent? How are we concerned with that? Anybody can produce then
and this fellow can also produce. Therefore, I think there is a complete misunderstanding of the
relationship between the licensee and the plant breeder, which also comes under Clause 35. The
position is quite different vis-a-vis the compulsory licensing. According to me, it should be the Certral
Government. But here it is the National Authority. If I provide for compulsory licensing, then I am



17

saying that you shall give the right actually for someone clse to produce the seed because you are not
producing the seed yourself or you are creating shortages. Therefore, the prices are going up. I want
the seeds to be multiplied and compulsorily license another person to produce the seeds. That is the
correct decision and that must be there. If a breeder wants to surrender, what is the use of hearing
the position of the agent or the licensee whom he has appointed. I do not see any merit in even
having a clause like this because it is purcly a relationship between the two. In fact, once he has
surrendered, that means everybody can multiply the seed. When anybody can do it, he can also do.
With reference to clause 29, I agree that there are certain varicties which need to be excluded. But if
you look at sub-clause (2), it says: “The Central Government shall, by notification in the Official
Gazette, specify the genera or species for the purposes of registration of varieties under this Act.”
The Central Government shall not exclude any genera. The thing which is contemplated is that all
genera or species shall be notified right at the beginning and the Central Government shall not
exclude any variety from the list, except in public interest, and that public interest is mentioned in
sub-clause (1). I am not very sure that it is desirable to notify all genera, all species at one go because
the kind of volume of work which will devolve upon the National Authority is going to be huge. I
think like in other cases, this may have to be done almost by a gradual kind of phasing. Whea you
cover all groups, you may start with the more important crop which occupies maybe 60-70 per cent of
the area.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Time phasing we will have to have.

SHRI K. RAJAN: Therefore, I think sub-clause (2) should really read as: “Species and genera as
notified from time to time”.

Otherwise the sub-clause 3 does not read properly.
MR. CHAIRMAN: That is correct.

SHRI K. RAJAN: I do not think you can do all at one go. I will start looking at plums and I will
also start looking at rice varieties—there is no comparison at all bacause of the volume of work.

Overtime we should do that.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is correct.

SHRI K. RAJAN: There are some minor points—which I also mentioned—with reference to the
power of the Registrar and how you read the power of Registrar and the power of the Authority. I
think there is a connection or rectification as to whom can do it. But, here again, I think all decisions
rest with the Authority and not with the Registrar General or the Registrar. They are all part and
parcel of the National Authority. The Registrar General virtually functions as the Secrctary of the

National Authority.
SHRI BIPLAB DASGUPTA: There is a clause in the Bill which says that the Registrar is
appointed under the Authority.

SHRI K. RAJAN: The Act itsclf says that the Registrar General is appojntcd only by the
Authority. The Registrar and Registrar General are appointed only .by. the Authority. The gnly"bther
provision was with reference to cataloguing. The cataloguing of varieties has become very important
not only for the purposes of registration of plant breeders’ rights but may also be necessary from the

point of view of the community rights.

For a variety to be recognised as a variety, all its characters will have to be detailed. It is a
tremendous work for the National Authority. Certain institutions will have to go through that. I think
in the choice of an institution which will undertdke this cataloguing process, once an Authgmy has
decided all the detailed descriptions and data information which is required about a varicty, my
feeling would be that the institution which is going to do this ca!alogmng business shou[d be done
only on the recommendations of the Authority. It cannot decide suo motu, or onfsndc .°f the
Authority without consultation with the Authority. It must’be done clearly in consultation with the
Authority or at least on the reccommendation of the Authority. The Government might decide not to
accept the recommendation or they may discuss and ﬁn.ally come to a conclusion. But here the central
role will have to be played by the National Authority.
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I have only one other point. It is with reference to tests. We are accepting the fact that the DUS
criteria — Distinctness, Uniformity and Stability — and of course novelty should be there, without a
variety, being new, compared to something else which has already been registered or which is an
extant variety. That is why I am laying stress on the question of release that as long as this is novel, it
is distinct, it is uniform and stable, but it also says tests. Now the tests could be only to find out as to
whether this criteria is met or not. I think we nced to specify clearly that the other kind of
considerations will not come in the thing. It should not so happen that we have a set of criteria
mentioned under the substantive provisions of the Act which says on what basis a variety will be
registered as a variety. There is a clause called ‘test’ and, therefore, using the test actually we reject a
varicty on other grounds. I think it could happen. People could take a view for superiority of
performance over an existing variety. Why bother registering a variety if it is not superior to the
existing variety? That is a decision, I think, ultimatley only a farmer is going to make. If he is going
to take the seeds, if he finds the seeds good, he would purchase it. It is only then there is some
purpose in releasing new varieties. Let the farmer be the ultimate decision-maker in terms of
qualitative aspects of varicty as to whether it is new, because same kind of seced or some varicty
should not be sold under a different name with only minor modification.

In the tests I think the only grounds of testing will be only to find out whether the claim
pertaining to DUS—Distinctness, Uniformity and Stability—does or does not hold good in the Indian
conditions. Secondly, it is a point which has not come but I think is likely to come. It is, perhaps, the
point which the National Authority will have to decide.

Varieties could be highly susceptible. It could create problems actually in terms of spread of
disease. In such cases the highly susceptible varieties, one has to take a view as to whether it is
worthwhile registering such a variety. I think there is a risk involved in that. May be as a part of test
if it were to come. The National Authority can decide it and where the National Authority puts down
this regulation this could be added. But it should not so happen that just because one farmer
takes—because of whatever pressure he comes to, he decides to take a variety he should not create
problems for the neighbouring farr ;= by growing highly susceptible varicty, particularly in the case
of fungus diseases or viruses. It conlafiappen that it may be transmitted by air, by soil-borne diseases
or air-borne diseases. Those things naturally will have to be prevented. I do not think we can allow
highly susceptible varieties which can constitute a problem to the Indian agriculture. As far as
farmers’ rights are concerned, it is clearly taken care of that the farmer has got total freedom to use
his own produce as planting material. I think that is a key issue. There is no way I believe that it is
possible in the next, may be even in the next 2-3 decades for 100 per cent replacement of sceds of all
important crops is going to take place in this country. That is just not possible. I do not think, it is to
my mind, to a certain extent even desirable actually that the farmers replaces for all the 180 million
hectares.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is right. That is not desirable and not possible.

SHRI K. RAJAN: That is not possible. The only thing that we have to safeguard is with
reference to spread of diseases which might spread to other farmers. Only subject to that condition
which, perhaps, the National Authority itself can take. In this, of course, other terms with reference
in some places there does not seem to be consistency between the provisions of the Act and the other
part of the clause. Somewhere it says who can be the Chairman etc. I think that can be taken care of.
That is a minor point.

Thank you. .

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you Shri Rajan for your very good suggestions. I request you to
kindly stay for lunch with the Committee.

(The witness then withdrew.)

MR. CHAIRMAN: The next person to depose is Dr. S.C. Tiwari from Varanasi. Let us
welcome him. Dr. Tiwari, you are welcome to this Committee. Please express your views on this Bill.
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DR. §.C. TIWARI: Hon. Chairman and hon. Members of the Joint Committee, I am grateful to
you for giving me an opportunity to present my views on this very controversial Bill. In fact the whole
idea of TRIPs and GATT Agreement had been so controversial that I had been interested in this
subject since 1994. It is very nice of you to have given me an opportunity to be here.

Instead of going into the clauses and the details of the economic benefits and something like that,
which is being done by many experts, I will make a few submissions. I am basically a physicist. I am
not a representative of any organisation or any lobby or any industry. If you wish, though it may not
be a modest thing to claim, I think I do represent the spirit of the country. From that point of view I
would request you to listen to what I am trying to say before you.

The first thing which I want to say is that the first question which naturally comes to my mind is
why there is so much emphasis on intellectual property rights since 1994. If we sce the evolution of
the patenting of the concept of plant protection, then, we would find that it was in 1930 that the Plant
Variety Protection Act was implemented in America. At that time also, the noteworthy thing is, the
plant variety protection was granted only for a sexually reproduced plants and not for general plants.
After 40 years, in 1970, it was the American Seeds Trade Association which drafted this Patent Act
of 1970 in America and that Act actually enlarged the scope of the plant variety protection to both
sexually as well as asexually reproduced plants. Secondly, the most important thing was that instead
of plant breeders, the scope was enlarged to the multinational corporations or to any private or public
funding organisation which supported the plant breeders. That was a shift in philosophy.

Earlier, the basic philosophy was two-fold. One was public good in mind and second, the scientist
who is doing research work should be given some bencfit for this work. So, this was the original
modification. It was corrupted in 1970 and the essential economic benefits went to the multinational
corporations or organisations. After 1970, in 1980, it was again amended. I am talking of Amcrican
Plant Variety Protcction Act. That amendment of 1980 callcd the scientists there in America to argue
against that and three reasons were advanced for that. First, the cost of the sceds in the devcloping
countries will incrcase manifold. Second, it will lead to erosion of the existing plant variety. Third, it
will lead to the monopoly of the resecarch work in the hands of the multinational corporations. Now,
we find it true today if we see why so much price rise has taken place and why so much funding is
required for the kind of research work we do. Then we can sce the truth of this apprehension at that
time in 1980. It was at that time that the multinational corporations took full hold of this intcllcctual

property right busincss.

In 1986, this Dunkel Draft business started. The rcason was that cven at that time, certain
multinational corporations apprehended that most of the germplasm exist in the third world countrics
and to do transgenic varicty work in devcloped countrics will require this germplasm from.th_c
developing countrics and they may not give it. So, what is ic way to do it? The way to do it is
through introducing TRIPs agreement in GATT and by making WTO a scparate body from UNO
And by not giving importance to WIPO, World Intellcctual Property Organisation, and by giving
importance to TRIPs Council, essentially, the whole thing has gone in t‘llc hands of the multinational
corporations. I will give you one or two examples. Onc example is from thc Monsanto sceds
Corporation. Actually, Monsanto does business not only in sceds, but they have pcstncnficf bn{smcss
also. So the whole idea of this intcllectual property rights in the context of thc‘p‘lant varictics is that
plant breeders will be dcpendent upon some corporations. I have got the official document of the
UPOV with me. The UPOV started in 1961. I was talking about the USA. Lct. us sce the Euro'pc'an
situation also. There also, in the ycar 1961, the first Convention for the Protection of Plant Vancmfs
was held. After that, it was amended in 1978 and there is a new version of it, UPOV, 1991. Now, this
UPOV Convention grants certain freedom to farmers. But what happcnf is that on the one hand thc.y
say that the farmer is not a fool and he has full freedom to use one varicty of :ccfi or n'nothcr. but if
he has that wisdom, then why do we need propaganda and a.dvcmscmcm.s? Esscnt_nally. if we promote
seed and then we make so much of propaganda and advertiscments, the farmer is not free to utilise
seeds as he wishes to. Therefore, he comes under the control of these big corporations.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: Have you studied the rclltio?s between a big breeding company
like Monsanto and farmers? Can you tell something about this?
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DR. S.C. TIWARI: I would tell you one thing particularly about Monsanto and farmers. What
Monsanto actually did was that they granted certain rights to the farmers and those rights were in the
form of saving seeds for one or two seasons, but the problem with that was that these seeds would
become out of date within two years. So, the advantage which is granted to the farmers, that too only
to big farmers, is taken away at the same time. Only big farmers could benefit from that. So, the
Monsanto Corporation incorporated certain things, but it cannot benefit the poor farmers of the
country.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: There is some punishment also if the farmer does not do certain
things as per the agreement.

DR. S.C. TIWARI: Yes. They call it ‘ethics’. They say that ethics should be there. Actually, this
word is misused by Monsanto. Even if a big corporation is doing this—because a huge funding is
required for the resecarch activities—they say that it is serving the society. But when they talk of
cthics, they say that only the poor farmers should observe ethics and there is no such obligation on
the part of a multinational company like Monsanto. The one example which I was quoting is about
‘round up’. This is a pesticide manufactured by Monsanto. It was written in the report published in
The Hindustan Times dated 29th September, 1997 that ‘since the patents for ‘round up’ will soon
expire, Monsanto is trying desperately to create new markets in India.’
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DR. S.C. TIWARI: My suggestion is that this kind of a Bill or Act should not be made by India.
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DR. S.C. TIWARI: What I am saying is that if we accept the basic philosophy of this, then, I am
sure, we will not get anything for the country.
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DR. S.C. TIWARI: We can fight for it. This has not happened just in a year or so. As I was
saying, it took six decades for these people to come out with this.
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o B WM | AR R AR Reeed €, it is not the greed that should motivate the research work or
the creation of knowledge. Secondly, we should not do anything that is not in the public good.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: The main thing that you are saying is that there should be no bid

in. I think, most Members will agree with you on this point. Our problem is, what do we do with this
Bill.

DR. S.C. TIWARI: We can come out of it, and that it what I am trying to say.
DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: How can we come out of it?

DR. S.C. TIWARI: We can cither come out or at least dismantle this provision. If we have
experts in our country, then we can do that.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: If it is within the powers of the Committee, then I can tell you that
it is what is going to happen. But this Committee is not so powerful, and we cannot influence the
TRIPS Agreement. We cannot do it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Dr. Tiwari, we are really grateful to you. You came all the way from
Varanasi and gave us your suggestions. You may please stay back for some time because we would
like to have lunch with you. You can sit in my room for just ten or fifteen minutes, and we can talk
over lunch.

DR. S.C. TIWARI: I have some papers for you.
MR. CHAIRMAN: You can give those papers. Thank you very much.

DR. S.C. TIWARI: With the permission of the Chair, I want to quote one thing more. Actually,
one argument that is being given is that we require many varicties of plants because the population is
increasing.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We need that. If we have this Act, then we will be in a position to attract
many breeders, who will have new varicties, and we will have lots of sceds. As the Prime Minister

has said, we can double our production in the coming ten years.

DR. S.C. TIWARLI: I will quote just one thing. Prof. Altieri, University of California, in Nature
says, “It is misleading to justify transgenic technology by saying that it will rclieye hunger. The major
advances in transgenics do not have anything to do with helping the developing world to produce
more food.”

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you. .

1314 hours (The witness then withdrew)

WITNESSES EXAMINED

1. Dr. P.D. Muzumdar, Advisor, Monsanto Enterprises Limited, Mumbai.

2. Shri Rajendra Kectkar, Director (Cotton), Monsanto Enterprises Limited, Mumbai.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Dr. Muzumdar, we have your suggestions before us. Whatever you want to
say, please explain it briefly.

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and hon. Members of the Committee.

i just li i Government for

We are representing Monsanto here, and we would -jllﬂ ka.e to oomphment. the

introducing this Bill. We feel, it is a very important stcp in providing the protection for plant varieties

as well as for the farmers’ rights. We think, it is very important, and we just havg a few lum.
As part of the plant breeders’ industry and also as members of that, we would like to submit these

few suggestions. .
SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: Are you representing an Indian company?
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DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: We are representing Monsanto Chemicals (India) Limited.

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: It is the subsidiary of an international company, and you are
speaking as a representative of the Indian subsidiary.

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: That is right, Sir.

In Chapter I, clause 2c defines breeder, ““As a person who has bred, discovered or developed any
variety.” When you are looking at seed companies, typically the breeding is done by not only one
particular individual, but by the company as well. So, we would like to suggest that a couple of
phrases like “‘corporate body” have to be added to that, and it reads as, *‘Breeder means, a person or
corporate body, who has bred, discovered or developed any variety.”

Moving on to Chapter II, clause 3 (v) provides for the constitution of the authority to be
appointed by the Central Government. We suggest that in addition to the members already suggested
in the Bill, two more representatives be added. One would be a representative of the seed industry
and, secondly, a representative of the farmers may also be added to this authority. So, that is another
suggestion that we have on that.

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: What is the idea?

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: To bring a broader viewpoint. Here, the farmers’ rights as well as
breeders’ rights are involved. Therefore, if there are representatives of the farmers as well as the
breeders, we feel that would add to the value that authority could bring.

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: Mr. Chairman, Sir, I want to seek a clarification on his
presentation of views that the representation of corporate sector would make it more wider. Is it your
view that if there is a representation of the corporate sector, then this authority would be more
augmented?

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: Yes, Sir.

Another point would be in terms of the confidentiality of the information. Coming to Chapter
III, development of new plant varicties involves substantial investment by the breeder. It is important
that confidentiality of the information submitted to register the variety is maintained. So, some
mechanism that ensures that would be helpful.

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: In Chapter VII Clause 31, about the Farmer’s right to sell and
exchange seeds in its current form, something more should be done.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Yes, it needs to be claborated. We agree with you.

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: We are only suggesting there that some language be added that will
clearly define as to what their rights are in terms of protecting them.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will do that.
DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: Thank you.

Sir, in Chapter X, Clause 41, we feel, the provision of compulsory licence needs a little more
definition. It should be only resorted to only in case of a national need or a shortage of seed of a
particular variety. Some clarification of the intent of this Clause and specific parameters that may be
used to determine when a breeder is not supplying market need would be helpful.

Normally, in our estimates, it will take about five to six years of extensive testing in development
to make a seed available to public, and generally, in terms of then building of production and
building of stock also takes some time. So, if a variety is introduced and it becomes popular very
soon, it is not always possible in first one or two yecars to have enough to supply the demand.

So, what we are suggesting is that there should be an initial period of around six years instead of
three years before a compulsory licence can be evoked in that kind of a situation. *
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In Chapter X, Clause 48 provides for the rights of communities. However, there is no clear
framework to determine such rights related to the ownership of varieties. So, we are suggesting that
some clear guidelines may be provided to ensure fair treatment for the breeder as well as community
in terms of determining the rights of the community and also of the breeders. Clearly both have to
work together and that is why we suggest that some more guidelines be made available.

Finally, we were also suggesting that perhaps the NBPGR would be the referee in terms of
forming the bases for the registration of varieties. So, that Clause be included whereas the NBPGR
becomes a referee lab and their report is considered as a conclusive evidence to the Court. These are
the few suggestions we had put forth before you, Sir.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: Monsanto Enterprises Limited is not only a breeder, it is also a
supplier of all the major inputs of agriculture. Let me say very frankly that there is a fear that the
benefits will not go to the small farmers, small breeders or the farmers who become breeders. It will
rather go to large multinational companies like Monsanto. It is not only the fear of this Committee, it
is the fear of the country as a whole.

One of the reasons of the fear is that through the seeds, the company is going to introduce a kind
of dependency of the farmers on the company to sec that it is compatible with the weedicides,
pesticides. The company also supplies fertilisers and many other things. The fear is that on the basis
of the seeds, the company is trying to make our agriculture dependent on the multinational
companies. In addition to this, there is a fear because the company operates in a number of ways.
One of the way is through a contract with small farmers. At various places it has been already
working in the country. At some places where the farmer is working with the Monsanto, he is to
come into some sort of an agreement and that agreement includes many penal provisions. Could you
tell us something more about this agreement between your company and the small farmers? Could
you tell us about the general dependency of farmers on you?

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: In terms of providing agricultural inputs, Monsanto is engaged only in
producing and selling some weedicides in this country at this point and some sceds. We arc not
involved in selling pesticides or fertilisers at all, and we have no intent of doing that because we are
not doing it anywhere in the world either. World wide in Monsanto agriculture, we are only dealing
in seeds and herbicides. That is all.. So, those are not necessarily related.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: Historically speaking, your main activity is weedicides, and seed is
your new activity.

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: That is right.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: So, you are selling seeds with the idea that the farmer who is
buying the seed will find your weedicides more acceptable than we have the kind of weedicides.

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: That is true only in one particular type of seed which is called
randapadit. It is a transgenic crop today. It is not available in India. It is only available in other
countries. As far as India is concerned, we are only selling some maize seeds and some sunflower

seeds at this point.

In terms of dependency, the farmer is free to choose any type of sced or any type of weedicide.
Both are available from different supplicrs. We certainly do not have any kind of monopoly or
control on any type of seed. There are hundreds of secd companies in India tb.at are producing maize,
sunflower, cotton etc., We are just one of scveral hundreds sced companies.

MR. CHAIRMAN: They believe in integration.

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: On the agreement side, we do not l.uve any kind of agreement with
growers in India. When a customer buys a product — cither weedicide or packet of seed — the only
agrecment is that he is buying it. That is all. It is a purc sale agreement.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: Do you have your own federation also?
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DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: We have contract growers and those contracts are very standard like
all seed companies. They contain a agreement by which the foundation seed will be given by the
Monsanto to the farmer just like any other seed company will do, and then the farmers will grow the
seed, produce the sced and then the Monsanto will buy from them.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: Who decides on the prices of the seeds which you sell to the
farmers?

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: About the foundation seeds, it is the company who decides.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: The price of inputs is also decided by the company. Is it not. The
delivery of output and the acceptance of the inputs are decided by the company. Is it not? What I am
saying is that the price the farmer is paying for the inputs is decided by the company. It is not?

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: Yes, Sir.
I may add that this is the standard practice in the industry.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: The prices the farmer gives from the company for delivering the
outputs is also decided by the company.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Shri Dasgupta, in the first few years to propagate that variecty, they may
even give it free.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: In the agreement, two sets of prices are decided by the Company.
That is what I wanted to understand. There is also a provision.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Theirs is a big company and they can do that for some time.

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: Actually, it depends on the market forces. There can be some other
company that may do more.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: But not by Monsanto. You have some penal provision regarding
re-use.

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: No, we do not.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Dr. Dasgupta, as you know, the Authority has the power to see if the seed
price is more. They can intervene and see to it that it is reduced considerably.

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: Do you believe that if this new Act is passed, you will have a
better market condition in India? You must have been dictated by your own business considerations.
Therefore, I want to know whether you believe that if this Bill is passed and made a law you would
have more opportunities to enter the Indian market.

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: I think, the Indian market affords a lot of opportunity to anybody
who is in the seed industry. I cannot say whether it would be more or less. This Act, we see, protects
both the farmers as well as the breeders. ”

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: I want to know whether it will benefit you because you have
taken the trouble of coming all the way from Mumbai and deposing before the Committee seeking
certain changes which will make the Act more effective. Since you are a commercial organisation,
your coming here must be backed by commercial considerations. So, I want to know how you will-be

/’_ppefited so far as the Indian .market is concerned.

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: I think, it will benefit our company and any other person who is a
breeder. '

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: You are representing your company.
DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: This meeting will have an effect. ]
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SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: Now I come to my second question. You are a multinational
company producing sceds for differcnt countrics. Agriculture enormously depends on environment,
moisture, atmosphere, climatic conditions and all that. So, would you be producing secds only for India
or you would be producing the same type of sceds worldwide without considering the vagaries of weather
and climatic conditions. Do you think that your standard sced without taking the characteristic conditions
of India into account would be productive in this country?

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: We do not believe that there is any standard seed that is or that can be
commonly grown across scveral countries.

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: I wanted to know whcther you will be producing sceds only for
India

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: We will be producing seeds for India with Indian seeds. We are not
importing any sccds. We are just producing secds in India. The tcrminator sced does not exist any more.

SHRI GURUDAS DAS GUPTA: So, you will be producing sceds taking our agricultural
characteristics into consideration.

DR. P.D. MUZUMDAR: Yes.
MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you. We shall now break for lunch.
(The Committee then adjourned)
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¥& ¥ | But a particular community or a particular area is rcponsible for that variety. So, whcn' we start
registering all these varictics, we will have to register such varicties in the name of that community. If we
keep only the breeder and do not write this community, then that will be misunderstood. So, from that

angle also it is important.
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SHRI N.K. SHUKLA: Then, in this very Chapter, clause 5 says: “Farming means any person
who cultivates crop cither by cultivating himsclf or through any person, and includes a person who
conserves and preserves”. That is already there. But the words ‘“‘through any other person’’, are not
required.

MR. CHAIRMAN: My father cannot cultivate though he is a small farmer. He will have to take
the help of other persons. He will have to employ some persons for cultivating that land. But he can
himself supervise. If we climinate this thing, then my father cannot be a cultivator or <cannot be a
farmer. We cannot call him a farmer then.

it @ gaen : T, 3o @ F AR W oA ww A ad A el wmn @m, mh ¥ ek
/20 e 7w § PR R Y o ke fF anR R e def @ sadd A o oy ¥ Wt B v T
o wfid | s W W 3 W wEm A gk geenE w=A@ @ 3 of = feam wRar @

MR. CHAIRMAN: Farming mcans, any person who cultivates crops either by cultivating the
land himself or through any other person. We can say ‘‘either by cultivating the land himself or
supervising the cultivation himself”. Will that be all right?

st @ede e (@ FQ X ww owd wwA L
wwafe whEm : ok T wen s dfevE § @ wm ¥

SHRI AJAY CHAKRABORTY: We can say “who cultivates himself or any other member of
his family”.

st ede ypwen : frelee quaTs | wa 1 Resliweh gwan 3 w6 7 @R deerd @ 7@ dm ofew
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SHRI N.K. SHULKA: Then, on page S in clause 6, it is mentioned “No act or proceeding of the
Authority shall be invalid merely by reason of any vacancy in or defect in the constitution™. This
requires to be clarified. Any vacancy does not specify the number. At least the majority should be
there. At least 50 per cent of the members should be there.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The word used here is “any vacancy”. Any vacancy means only one vacancy,
it does not mean many vacancies.

o el YT : YW 319 Ry & A | 7% #e waen § Any defect in the appointment of a person
acting as the Chairperson is a legal term.

Aty wEvea : WA A ST e I R A w0 e s A e ) d R i T e
W W owm W R W A—A 7w am o et

SHRI N.K. SHUKLA: Then further, in the same chapter, in clause 8(2)(b), I want an addition
to be made. My request is that the words ‘“including indigenous traditional varieties, variants and
mutants thereof”’ should be added. This is given in my notec and I shall leave this copy here.

st @ e : 4T 4 W TR 14 A AT W A I dnd F ar W weR dogd Sy Ra amg)
A ag Wi § wmem
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SHRI GOVINDAN NAIR: This is to establish the integrity. It should be considered new only if it

has not been accepted for one year. In India it takes four ycars. In any other country this is for quality
or novelty or newness.

R wge oG A wE QR
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SHRI R.K. TRIVEDL: It is true of distance. Whatever it becomes known in the public, if it is
known in market for four years, it has the same effect that it is known in public before six months or
one year. It is duc to distance.

ft mq e fig oW W A wrg M v Aepe dw o T
wwft wiew : wt @ ok A W sem-aem #)

DR. S.D. SINGH: Sir, my submission is that if this variety is developed for India, novelty will be
considered. It should be one year from here. It will take time to spread in other countries. Then we can
establish it. It takes three times more time for propagation. In case of fruits it takes 34 years. So, we

kept it for longer period.
it Tedhe g : AW 15 ¥ THER W R 1w i 3w o witd Arw 3 s feee R
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WYY TReEw : @R W #f U@ den ¥ W1 The Government should give some financial
assistance to the NGOs who will like to devote themselves in such a work. There are so many
technicalities involved in the registration and for the purpose of filing of the application form that it is a
very difficult thing. There are so many very very technical things which will be known, of course, to
private researchers and research organisations but not to the farmers. Therefore, for the help of the
farmers that facility should be available, Agricultural institutions and agricultural departments of the

universities should help the farmers for filing the applications.

T VRN BE A 3l 9- we W1 W @i & wrem ¥ W@ ww vl § 1 el wer w
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DR. GAUTAM: The National Bureau of Plant Genetic Resources will maintain one sample of
all the registcred varieties of germplasm. So, that is the repository which will be the referral point for
any purpose. That can also facilitate further retrieval of the material.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: Clause 26(7) says:

“The amount of benefit sharing determined under this section shall, on a reference made by the
Authority in the prescribcd manner, be recoverable as an arrear of land revenue by the District
Magistrate within whose local limits of jurisdiction the breeder liable for such benefit sharing
resides.”

sft @oFe en : Ak dogme B A A FGEA § as arrears of land revenue R Wt W A ¥

AN T R e W, AR I R s dn i R AR IR R @, m
MEFEd, TiHm i mm AL ot W wa t W 2R b W owEmd

st T o dw A e Woftn e wdm, R ¥

avmaf wiea : A o s A el A oo T B A T 2 1 sw W i g R, T 3w Rt
# @ T 1 Therc are so many ways through which money can be recovered. o G # w1 3@
bR et W e W R w b R R aw AR wed Wl

i @R yEen : W BREEl & WY 9 SR g, e wERe iR A e Tl L)

wuNfA APEg : e g™ 8, W W E@R fer soh

st Gede goen : R B agw w4 @ W gwu e Feefg

st @l QN : AR Y A fedw B @ B IR R W wet R w R oy
We are not for them. We are for our peasants, our plants and our varieties.

Then, on page 15, in claus; 31, there should be added, ‘sceds and varicties’ after farm produce.

Then, there is a proviso to clause 31 which says:

“Provided that a farmer shall not be entitled for such right in case where the sale is for the
purpose of reproduction under a commercial marketing arrangement.”

What is this?
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He can sell it in that form. He can exchange and sell also. But you are right that we have to give
some detailed explanation to it so that it may not be exploited and the farmer may not be harassed.
This is what you want.

i g it wam e Wt st Re e s t &
R o il 5 o Wl W dewe ¥ sk 3@ W g T T W AR 3 el W e W fwd 8
Rrem & farens ¥0 T W ¥, W W & s d

R T WA AR T AN AR Y G it mRE A e ¢t @
o fedre 3 931 36 F ¥ A & wew & w3 4 & wa o dw v € ae gen dwvw W A i
sa 31 W o ¥ A Rran

MEd g it st RN dmgduto it s A wm w
frem B T B

|V wREa: =0, 3 A% A R W W@ @, 3w 7 R s wif wp feam Are 9 500 TR W 200
@ T ¥ 9% T Y wa 8, W I AT ¥ W v el dued el IR W o T e
R F a A o Pk iy & W A fRRw TH wh

He can sell it in that form. He can exchange and sell also. But you are right that we have to give
some detailed explanation to it so that it may not be exploited and the farmer may not be harassed.

This is what you want.
sft ety T8 W A € sk R e W witd ol e ged we & 3 AR § sfeed W we
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SHRI N.K. SHUKLA: Clause 34 says:
“Save as otherwise provided in this Act, no person shall—

(a) produce or cause to be produced.....
What is the need of it?
o T fErR W @ ¥, T I W AR v R ARy ww A 4
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You will have to do this because this is the basis of protection of a variety. It is not
contradictory. For a farmer, that will be an exemption in a way. The details of what sort of

exemption it will be, will be given in the chapter on farmer.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: There should be tribunals for this.
st el e v feh e 8 @ T 1 R, wx I ol ¥ wow wem ¥ B some type of

judicial authority should be there.
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SHRI AJOY CHAKRABORTY: There should be a special court with summary power.
AR TRES: T8 R AuRA WA @ ¥, R W o # ) A W} o & v o & g e
st el gwn: Prer ok s g TwEe W A m t

MR. CHAIRMAN: Whatever is within the jurisdiction or the authority of the registrar should
not go to the civil court. It will create problems and it will not help farmers. T & Tae wffswe &

agn @ sk wwEn wd
st el gwen: w W @ giw B A ARl AR B A Rl w W s SR

W wREE: TR A O et e wRn ovh ) wd W A ffewa 2wl t A M w Rw A A
it B Ymow w f6 i A 3 wm T ¥ 1 Tribunal is meant only for dealing with such cases and for
looking after other things. It should go to the tribunal. They can decide the cases early. Whatever is
within the jurisdiction or the authority of the Registrar should not go to the civil court.

R o Repe ¥, TR Repe 8 oo ot W e o B owl B & W Repe 4wy
SHRI N.K. SHUKLA: Some judiciary should be there.

SHRI AJOY CHAKRABORTY: Criminal courts are a lengthy process. Special Courts with
summary power would be a better idea.

st Ty fie: T A A W@ dw MWW D wen Ak AR w Ww wBm

W e Een: W R @ 9 auk et & Reerw ot A & Rg B 7 B SRR B A
o g

Wiy WoEe: T Wk ¥ @ geE femn 21 Thank you very much. We are grateful for your very
valuable suggestions.

(The Witness Then Withdrew)
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WITNESS EXAMINED:

1. Shri Afsar H. Jafri, Resecarch Foundation for Technology and Ecology, New Delhi.
wwfy wgRe: SN oW fee & W A e gum sk vn wmm)

SHRI AFSAR H. JAFRI: Sir, I would like to first thank the Committee for inviting the
Rescarch Foundation to give the prescntation. We are very grateful to you. I would like to do my
submission in thrcc parts. The first part will focus on basically the TRIPS review and whether we
should have this particular Act in the coming days or it can wait.

As you know, TRIPS itself is under revicw, and there are many countries who are demanding for
the extension of implementation of TRIPS by five years.

The African countrics and the Central American countries are the prominent ones who have
submitted their proposals to the TRIPS Council for delaying the implementation of the TRIPS
agreement. After the failure of the Scattle talks, the demand for extension of TRIPS has become
morc focusscd and there has been more pressure. It has been accepted by the Director General of the
WTO that there is a demand for the extension of the TRIPS agreement. They are demanding an
extension for five ycars. The deadline was for 1st January, 2000. They are demanding it to be 1st

January, 2005.

The sccond important thing is the relation of the PVP Act with other laws, like the Bio-diversity
Act, the Plant Patent Act ctc. Recently, the Government has directed the Bio-diversity Act under the
obligation of the Convention on biological diversity and under that there is an exception recently
introduccd that this particular bio-diversity Act will not apply to the PVP Act and the recognition of
the farmers’ rights and community rights will not be provided for in that particular bio-diversity Act.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Your suggestions are with us. This, of course, will add to whatever you say
here.
SHRI AFSAR H. JAFRI: Sir, coming to the Bill, I would like to stress on two to three points.

Thic very first thing is that the Uruguay Round should be deleted from the Bill because the particular
article under which this Act is being made, that is article 27(b), is under review. This is the first

point.

The second point is that clause 2(c) which provides for the definition of a breeder, says that a
breeder is a person who can breed, develop or discover. This is for the first time that the word
‘discover’ is used and provided for in the TRIPS. We demand that this word ‘discover’ should be

delcted. It is becausc it would lead to licence to pirate indigenous varieties.
The other important point about which I would like to stress is related to clause 2().
MR. CHAIRMAN: Shri Jafri, we know what is there is clause (2j). You want to refer to ‘few

other persons’ that is, either he cultivates himself or he supervises cultivation. But he can only
supervisc. He will not cultivate.

SHRI AFSAR H. JAFRI: He will only cultivate. He cannot be a breeder.

MR. CHAIRMAN: A farmer can be a breeder also, In any case, even if he is a farmer he would
have to take the help of others. He cannot do everything himself. We would have to add this clause.
Otherwise, what would a farmer do?

SHRI AFSAR H. JAFRI: We should introduce the definition of farmers’ l!l(hoﬂﬁel. In 'this
particular clause, clause (2), which deals with the definition, it refers to the tndiuqnal crop variety
that which are the products of farmers’ breed. In clause 3(b), we should also include eminent
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scientists of proven track record and NGOs who are engaged in the task of agriculture as well as
representatives of the farmers.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You are right. We are thinking about it.

SHRI AFSAR H. JAFRI: Sir, the most important thing that I would like to say is about article
26(2). It deals with benefit sharing. In this particular Act, for the first time, the farmers innovation
for breeding is being rewarded through arrears of land revenues. It is a very long process. We would
suggest that instead of having this arrears land revenue, the commercial use of farmers’ communities
and knowledge and biological resources should be rewarded that certain percentage accruing from it.
It should be generated through local communities.

Another important point that I would like to make is related to farmers’ rights, Under this
particular clause 31, it says that the farmer has only been conservers and cultivators. It has not been
recognised as a breeder. Now, 80 per cent of our population belongs to the farming community.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What we are thinking of is that we should add a separate chapter for
farmers’ rights and whatever is included has also to be included in clasue 31. We have a feeling that
not much has been said about the rights of the farmers in this Bill. You are very right about clause
31. We arc going to give more authority and rights to the farmers.

SHRI BIPLAB DASGUPTA: You could give your recommendations to the hon. Chairman of
the Committee and we would look into those recommendations.

SHRI AFSAR H. JAFRI: Now, instead of farm products, the Act should say about seeds and
propagative material. The words ‘farm produce’ should be replaced.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You are right. It is not sufficient.

SHRI AFSAR H. JAFRI: We think, clause 48 should be deleted completely. It is because it is
an abuse on the farmers. It erodes the rights of the farmers instead of protecting our agro-bio-
diversity. We want this to be deleted.

We have a sort of a grower agreement instrument under which the growers in USA are not
supposed to save or exchange seeds. This agreement is the Mon Santo Round Up Ready Soyabeen.

Sir, these are the few things that I wanted to submit before the Committee.

SHRI BIPLAB DASGUPTA: Is this a copy of the agreement?

SHRI AFSAR H. JAFRI: Yes, Sir.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Hec has worked very well.

In the new draft, you have not given a scparate chapter on farmers’ rights.

SHRI N.K. SHUKLA: We will work on it, Sir.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: A copy of the agreement between Monsanto and some farmers,
about which Shri Shukla has mentioned in his presentation, be circulated to the members of the
Committee.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We are taking a copy of it and we will include it.

(The witness then withdrew)
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1. Shri B.K. Keayla, Managing Trustee, Centre for Study of Global Trade Systems and
Development; and Convenor, National Working Group on Patent Laws.

2. Dr. Biswajit Dhar, Co-Convenor, National Working Group of Patent Laws.
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SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Hon. Chairman and members of the Joint Committee, we are grateful
to you for giving us this opportunity to place our views on Protection of Plant Varicties and
Farmers' Rights Bill, 1999 before the Committee.

My colleague Dr. Biswajit Dhar is a senior economist. Both of us are associated with a number
of well-known organisations. We have been analysing GATT and WTO issues for the last over
12 years. During this period, we have had tremendous opportunity of interaction on these issues
with knowledgeable people in India and abroad. We have also made presentations in large number
of national and international scminars, conferences on implications of TRIPS agreement and
protection of plant varieties. Dr. Biswajit Dhar recently visited a number of places in Europe
interacting with farmers’ associations and other knowledgeable people on the subject. He will be
giving the fccl of European pcople on the subject.

We plead for a pragmatic approach to these issues to safeguard our national interest. TRIPS
agreement does provide possibilities of safeguards. The same should be extensively applied in the
national legislation under considcration. There are technical issues to provide a legal system for
protection of plant varieties and also there are wider public interest aspects that arc quitc important
which both of us would try to present before you.

Coming to the transitional period, article 27(3)(b) of the TRIPS agrecment provides for
evolving sui generis a patenting system to protect plant varietics. If we try to interpret Article 65 of
the TRIPS agreement sub-articles 2 and 4 when we do not have any system for protection of plant
varieties today, then the transitional period as such should be ten years and not five years on the
basis of which the Government has proposed this Bill. Further this article, 27(3)(b) is being
reviewed because it was provided in the same article that after four years of WTO coming into
being this sub-article would be reviewed. That review is on and we should have waited for the
review's outcome. The third point is that a number of developing countries have approached WTO
for extension of the transitional period. This matter is under consideration and a report has been
made by the DG, WTO to the General Council. The General Council in February meeting
considered this aspect and finally, probably they will be considering it in t}te next .meeting in th.e
month of May. There may be extension of period. So, from these three points of view, we submit
that there should be no haste in the enactment of this law so that we are able to carry other
countries with us.

Another important aspect is, ‘Are we ready to implement such a law?’ There are thousand and
lakhs of varieties which are involved. If we do not have the codification at existing varicties, how
arc we going to examine the claims? The claims are supposed to be fon: novclty. ls .it possi.blc for us
to judge today that a particular claim is new or this one is old? If it is old, it is in public domain
and for that reason a claim cannot be registered and a new claim cannot be created. So, {rom that
point of view, we are not yet ready. When we have five years’ time, we should try to avail of that
time. In the meantime we should try to build the codification.

Some African countries led by Kenya submitted a memorandum on a8 number of aspects of this
issue of plant varieties to the WTO. That matter is also under consideration. In f.act. we should also
be party to such kind of views and we should be pressing the issues for review of .TRIPS and
creating a model which should help countrics like ours whose economy is based on agriculture. So,
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we should see whether it would be a system which would be relevant for us? That is the kind of
situation we should be creating.

Now, Sir, coming to UPOV convention, we made an attempt to become a member of UPOV
convention of 1978. If we become a member of UPOV convention, we will have to implement
provisions of that convention and some of them are not relevant to us and not in our public interest.
There is one important aspect about the UPOV convention. This is 'a convention that has been
framed by breeders in advanced countries. It is to protect their interests that they have gone in for
this convention. Basically it is a few major companies who are involved in this kind of framework.
There was UPOV convention 61, then 78, and then 91. They will go on creating newer and newer
conventions so that they are able to get more and higher safeguards for themselves.

Before I come to the actual clauses of the Act, I would request my friend Dr. Biswajit to give
you a feel as to how people in Europe are feeling about this.

DR. BISWAIIT DHAR: Sir, thank you for giving me an opportunity to express our views. I had
interacted with a number of farmers’ organisations in Europe. They are all concerned about the
problems that arise out of the plant breeders right system which is there now. Most of the European
countries have accepted UPOV, 1991. There the farmers have less scope for manoeuvrability. They
are fighting for their very survival as farming communitics. They are facing major problems. That is
why the European Union tends to take a stronger position regarding agreement on agriculture in
WTO. Problems arising out of this whole technological push coming from the companies is another
dimension of the problem that the farmers are facing. Shri Keayla stated some reasons as to why this
Bill should not be rushed through. I would like to mention another reason. In why it should not be
rushed through. You a]l know that the convention of biological diversity allows sovereign States to
exercise their rights over their biological resources. Under that legislation we are in the process of
enacting bio-diversity legislation now. We gather that that Bill is in some stage of development. Now,
our view is that we should protect out bio-diversity. That should be the first step. If we are not able
to protect our bio-diversity, then it would be difficult for us to establish our rights over our resources.
The CBD allows us to get into the process of benefit sharing. We have to establish our sovereign
rights over our resources and then only should we go ahead and give the rights to the breeders. That,
I think, the Committee should consider.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Could you say very briefly about the views of the farmers of the European
Union?

DR. BISWAJIT DHAR: The farmers there are quite agitated about the system that is existing
there. For instance, in some countrics the farmers have to enter into a contract with the companies
that they would not violate the rights of the seed companies in any way. As I said, in Europe they
have a stronger system of plant varieties protection, so the rights of the breeders are stronger there.
They feel that this process should be reversed. That is why there is a lot of support for the farmers’
organisations from other countries like India who are taking up this issue upfront. That is the reason
they want to support us in the WTO convention in Geneva because they want the developing
countries like India to try and see that this process is reversed.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: I think we will experience these problems after ten or fifteen years.
At present it is not a problem for us. But for them it is a problem. I would like to ask about genetjical
engineering. So far it is not a problem here. But in America and Europe it is already an issue. One of
the questions that is agitating, the farmers in Europe is the genetically modified seeds coming from
other countries. You tell us more about the genetical engineering. How it should have a bearing in
the law that we are drafting because after ten or fifteen years it would become an issue?

DR. BISWAJIT DHAR: Farmers there realise that they have got into a slippery slope. The
companies have got a kind of stranglehold on them. As a part of this whole process all the companies
try to capturc the markects and manoeuvre the whole production process. Consumers are also very
worried. The interests of the consumers and the farmers have come together at some point of time.
That is why one finds a stronger articulation of these concerns in Europe as compared to United
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States. In Qnitcd State§ they do not have farmers. But in France and in Gcrmany though their
percentage in the working population is small, in some pockets they are quite influential.

' DR. BIPLAB D_ASGUPTA: The consumers there are more conscious with the environmental
issucs. They do not like genctically modified foods. They want the shops to declare that these are the
foods which are genetically modified and which are not.

Another issuc is the food industry. Its relation with agriculture is undergoing a change. Earlier,
food was the product and agriculture with the main input. Now, it is changing. No longer the farmers
produce food for the consumers. The farmer himself has become one of the many inputs, like hydro-
carbon, bio-mass etc. They have all become inputs to the food industry. Now, the food industry
dctermines how much protein should it contain, how much calories should it contain etc., and then
produce artificial food. So, the nature of relationship between the farmer and the consumer is
undergoing a change. If this trend continues, then what would that mean to our agriculture and
consumer?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Shri Dhar, you have talked about very important issues. You would like to say
many more things. We would listen to them. Shri Keayla stated that it should not be rushed through. If
it is extended for another five years, the situation might change. We will see if anything can be done in
that direction. We will think about that.

That is also to be reviewed. There are so many things. So, we will think about that also. But, now
in brief, could you throw some light on what is to be done with regard to the clauses which are, at

present, in the Bill?

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Sir, I would first like to deal with the section which deals with the scope of
protection of plant varieties. Section 13 says:

“Any person specified in Section 15 may make an application to the Registrar for registration of
any variety of such genera or species as specified under sub-section (2) of Section 29.”

It has been indicated that it covers all varieties. Now, whether we should include all varieties, is a
matter which has to be thought of. Even the international conventions have indicated that we may start
it with 15 varieties or so. Even they recognise this aspect that to start with, no one should include all the
varicties. We have provided in the law to cover all the varieties. Any person can apply for any variety.
Tt would be very dangerous because we are not at all cquipped to handle this kind of work.

MR. CHAIRMAN: This issue¢ has come up ecarlier also. The Committee will consider this.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Sir, [ would like to quote one case of USA. There an application was made
on biotech which runs into four lakh pages and the earlicr record was in 82,000 pages. Are we equipped
to examine this kind of application? Does such a machinery available with us? So, make it for limited
number of varieties so that we are able to cope up with it. To start with, we could include such
varieties, like flowers, ornamental plants, etc. These kinds of varieties could be taken at the first

instance.

The article 29 says that Government will notify but in public interest. Now pub}ic interest aspect
notification is different than proper exclusion or starting with a .limiged numbef of ‘vmetie:.'Thh aspect
must be considered, if at all we have to go ahead with this kind of legislation at this stage.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will do that.

DR. BISWAIJIT DHAR: Sir, I want to say something in this regard. Some problems could arise in
the arca of environment and bio-diversity when we have breedcu'.righu by way of legisiation. The
companies will go into the market and they are going to make some impact on glyenity. So, we should
actually give some time to test the law. We should start with limited varieties.

Another as is that what kind of impact it will have on the price of sceds. The studies in the
United States hapseashown that the prices of sceds have actually gone up after the breeders rights have

been introduced.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: The matter regarding price fixation would be kept in mind. I think, we will not
permit any company or any breeder or any person to charge whatever he wants. That is not possible. We
will look into that.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Sir, section 28 deals with exclusive rights which will be available to breeder.
Now, in those rights, right of export has also been included. If we look at the intellectual property right
laws, exclusive right of export has not been included. In our patent system and plant Act, 1970 or the
amendment which has been proposed in the TRIPS also, there is no provision of exclusive right on
export. This aspect of export has to be deleted. The other rights are inconsonance but this right of export
is something which is beyond the normal scope. Some nations do provide for this. Normally, in IPR
system, they do not provide for exclusive right on export. This aspect should be kept in mind.

Sir, section 31 deals with the farmers rights. Now farmers have been enjoying privileges from time
immemorial. Now, we are binding them in rights and legal rights which they can enjoy and which they
cannot enjoy. If we do that, there will be all kinds of problems. The farmers who have been enjoying all
these privileges up till now, why should we bind them?

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Committce is of the view that since not much has been said about farmers’
rights in this Bill, let us have a scparate chapter exclusively for farmers.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Sir, I would request you to kindly exclude the farmers from IPR system.
MR. CHAIRMAN: Why do you want this?

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Sir, the breeder has the right only till the product is with him. After he has
sold the product, his right gets exhausted. Why the farmers should be brought into this domain? We have
brought Indian farmers in this domain they run into lakhs. Generally, they are small farmers. The farmers
in USA are very big. They can cope up with this kind of situation. They can handle the rights given to
them and they can also handle the legal proceedings.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What to do then?

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: We should totally exclude the farmers.
MR. CHAIRMAN: But, its title includes the word ‘Farmers’.
SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Sir, the title also will have to be changed.
MR. CHAIRMAN: What benefit would it accrue to the farmer?

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Sir, he will be totally free. He can use the seed; he can sell the seed; and he
can exchange the seed.

MR. CHAIRMAN: If he is freec to re-produce certain variety and sell it under commercial
arrangement will that be proper? How to protect that variety?

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Sir, we are prepared to give all rights to the farmers. But why bring them
under the right system?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Then the farmers could be exploited by anybody.
SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Today, there is no system to protect them.
MR. CHAIRMAN: Should we not protect our scientists? Some varictics have been developed.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: We should protect new varicties. But so far as the farmers are concerned, we
should leave them out.

MR. CHAIRMAN: How can you protect them if you allow re-production of seed varieties?

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Sir, there arc different parties like breeder, universities, seed companies
which are involved in it. Then there are farmers also. My submission is that you include others but not
farmers.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: So, you want that we should not put any restriction on the farmers here.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: There is a mistake in the assumption. You are saying that if we
cxcludg the farmers, the farmers will continue to enjoy all the rights that they had traditionally. But,
that will not be the case. The courts in India will interpret the law entirely differently. They will only
ensurc further protection of the right of the breeder and the farmer would be completely excluded.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: If you have a chapter on the farmers’ right, it will be interpreted against
them. We are using medicines. There is no right against us for using the medicine. The right ends
after the patent holder sells his product. Similarly, here also, the variety -is sold by the breeder right
holder and after that his rights are exhausted. Why should his rights continue even right up to the
farmer activity? Why bring in the activity of the farmer under purview? This is my submission. It is
for you to consider whether this is possible or not.

MR. CHAIRMAN: This is a novel idea. You arc the only person who has given it. We will
certainly consider it.

DR. BISWAIJIT DHAR: I want to submit on the farmers’ rights the way they have been defined
in the Bill. It is very dangerous.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: The Chairman is suggesting that there is a separate chapter.
Supposing we keep the chapter on the farmers’ rights, what should be there and what should not be
there?
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not talk of the farmer. Let him make use of all sorts of varicties available in the market. Let him
produce them, sell them, exchange, share or do whatever he wants. They will have to tell us as to
how to protect the new variety and how to protect the breeders who will come in the field and do not

get any benefit out of it.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: He gets the compensation when he sells the variety in the market. That is
my angle. Again and again a farmer has to go in for hybrid varicty. But, there should be varicties like
this which should be available to the farmers to exploit. It should be left to the choice of the farmers
to go back to the original variety or original seed. It will be his choice.
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DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: In case we do not accept it, what will happen?

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will have to discuss things in detail with them because they have some
novel ideas which descrve deep consideration and more interaction with them.

DR. BISWAJIT DHAR: There is an intcrnational process which is on by the FAO. There is an
international undertaking on plant genetic resource where the farmers’ rights have been defined.
Farmers need to be rewarded for whatever they have contributed. I think that the farmers’ rights
definition here actually violates the process which India has been actively pushing. The farmen.’ rights
actually mean that they have contributed something. What is defined here as farmers’ rights is
actually farmers’ privileges which were available in 1978 also.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: Supposing you are given the task of drafting a chapters on the
farmers’ rights. Can you suggest something concretely and give it to us? Presently, we do not agree
with whatever is there. It is actually misleading. But what we want is, suppose we go in for a farmers’
rights chapter, then what should be there.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Firstly you kindly tell us that this aspect of excluding them is rejected.

We will certainly give you something. We want that the small farmers of this country who are running
into lakhs shoul):l‘l)le eicluded from the purview of this law. You want to bring them into some kind
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of regulation. The only thing which can help them is to exclude them. Otherwise they would be
brought into legal rigmarole.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: My impression is that basically this Committee is a pro-farmers
committee, whatever may be the other political differences. The Chairman is a great fighter for the
farmers’ rights. If what you are suggesting is going to help the farmers, the entire committce will
support it. We need to be fully convinced of that. We are not yet fully convinced about it.
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SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: If you think that farmers’ rights would give them something, it is not
going to be so. You arc in fact taking away somcthing from them by including them.
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SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: I come to the important aspect about public interest, that is, compulsory
licensing system. Here it is stated in Section 41. Before I come to that, I would like to read the
objectives of the TRIPS in Article 7 there of which include even the sui generis system. The idea is to
continue the promotion of technological innovation, transfer and dissemination of technology. IPR
should be conducive to socio-economic welfare and balancing of rights and obligations. This is the
objective of the TRIPS which has to bec translated in the national legislation. Have we really achieved
what is stated here? I would say that the formulation of the chapter on compulsory licensing is weak
in so far as we are concerned. The first thing is, we are saying here that compulsory licence will be
for a limited pcriod determined by the authority. Compulsory licence is given to be co-terminated
with the term of the right. If you create a right for twenty years, after a few ycars you give a
compulsory licence, then it should be co-terminated with the term of the right which is with the right
holder. It is not that you say that you have compulsory licence only for five or six years. That
formulation is a wrong formulation and should not be there.

The other aspect is that you are providing for a very high powered committee. On that I will
come later. When you are providing for a high powered committee, and that committee is going into
all aspects and giving a compulsory licence, you have created a provision there that an appeal can lie
with the High Court on this. The experience worldwide about the compulsory licensing system is that
if you have a system where the possibility of court intervention is there, then it remains only on
paper. The litigation can go on for any length of time. There should be no provision for the appeal
against the licence.

Firstly, there should be no limitation on the period of compulsory licence. Secondly, there should
be no provision for appeal. The third aspect is that the spirit of Article 31 in the TRIPS agreement,
though it relates to industrial patents, should also be reflected in this. For that I have suggested in the
memorandum that there should be an additional Section 41(A). I have given the formulation of
Section 41(A). If you want, I can read it out.

Under compulsory licensing, the royalty has to be given to the breeder. If compensation is not
specified in the law, as under the Patents Act of 1970, there is a provision of royalty of 4 per cent,
there will be all kinds of contentions. But ceiling on royalty should be provided.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We are thinking on that and we are serious about it.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Coming to appeals, we have created a chapter here where the appeals
would lie with the High Court. Under other IPR laws, we have provided for tribunals.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We are very serious about that. In the High Court, there is so much of delay
and nothing will come out of it. We are thinking that there should be tribunals which will deal only
with cases arising out of farmers rights.
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SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Even as in the case of TRIPS Agreement, we should have a higher
administrative authority.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We could agree to that.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Coming to Section 8, the authority is being created to regulate the law
also for developmental purposcs. Why should the authority be entrusted with the developmental
aspect?

MR. CHAIRMAN: This point has been raised earlier also. The rights of the authority should be
limited only to those registered ones. Otherwise, there will be no end to it. If all administrative things
are also to be given to the authority, then there will be too much of work. In fact, the work should be
reduced. So, we are thinking on that aspect.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: The first suggestion which I made was that we should go with limited
number of varieties. For that purpose, there is no need of a big authority like this. We could have a
controller-general.

The last point is about the preamble. No legislation is drafted saying that it has been provided as
we are under obligation of TRIPS. It is said so in the preamble. That kind of formation should not be
there.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We agree with it. We should not show that we are working out of
helplessness.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: We should straightaway say that it is for developmental reasons that we
are going to have a law.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is very important. That sort of drafting should not be there.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Even the patents law does not say so. I again repeat about the
transitional period. We should not act in haste.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have worked hard. We will also get your help if we need it. We may
discuss with you in detail, if needed.

(The witnesses then withdrew.)

WITNESSES EXAMINED:
1. Shri R.S. Arora, Secretary-General, SAI, Managing Director, M/s Century Seeds Private
Limited.
2. Dr. 1.S. Sandhu, Director, M/s Proagro Seeds Company Limited.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Arora, have you given your written submission to us?
SHRI R.S. ARORA: I am submitting just now. But we are not sure of the Hindi version of it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That will do.

SHRI R.S. ARORA: We have given some suggestions. We have told the existing laws and what
we want to propose.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We are already thinking that the authority should coasist of persons from the
Seed Association, seed growers as also the farmers and breeders.

SHRI R.S. ARORA: Thank you very much. The second point is, instcad _of ‘uniform’, we cou!d
use ‘homogenous’. The third point is about the system of ‘testing these materials beause the law is
not very clear on testing of the materials and docs not provide for ample funds for testing thmu.gh an
independent system. We have requested that an independent system may be created and accordingly,

fund allocation should be made.
MR. CHAIRMAN: That is a good suggestion.
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SHRI R.S. ARORA: Fourthly, we have mentioned that the deposition of parental lines which
have to be given at the time of testing should be done away because it is the most secret material of
any organisation.

MR. CHAIRMAN: If we do not give it, then how will the benefit go to the persons from whose
variety you have derived the genes?

SHRI R.S. ARORA: These parental materials have been developed over the years using
different combinations. They are not used as such but they are actually basic secret matcnals of any
organisation.

DR. J.S. SANDHU: It is at the time of rcgistering of the varicty that the parental material is
also required to be given to the gene bank. We are trying to say that under the clause of compulsory
licensing, the authority has got the right to ask the breeder to give the parental lines of the required
quantity so that somebody may be given the licence to produce it. At the time of registering, this
should be done. There is already a provision for this under compulsory licensing.

MR. CHAIRMAN: But when the benefits are to be shared, you develop a variety the parents of
which are a property of someone. So, the benefit should also be shared by that person. We should
know from where you have taken all that.

DR. J.S. SANDHU: We totally agree with you. We are simply saying that we are. protecting a
variety. So, the seed of that vanety is being protected and not the parents. However, under
compulsory licensing, there is a provision for calling for the seed of the parents.

MR. CHAIRMAN: So, that will not remain a secret, if it comes under compulsory licensing.
DR. J.S. SANDHU: It will remain a secret and the breeders will get the benefit out of it.

SHRI R.S. ARORA: About the extant variety, this provision of extant varicty has never come
under any Act. Most of the Acts do not provide for that. The extant varieties have been developed
mostly by the public sector system and the Act is proposing to give them a kind of protection with
retrospective effect. This is discrimination because it does not give the same protection to the varicties
developed by the private sector over these years.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There is nothing as private as such in our country.

SHRI R.S. ARORA: Sir, you are welcome to come and see. We can show you how much
investment we are making in plant varieties. Extant varicties do not qualify in the world over because
the whole Act is about the development of new varieties. Novelty is the main criteria.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Then others will make use of it. If you do not regnstcr, then you cannot
prove that this is ours.

SHRI BIPLAB DASGUPTA: This is the biggest success of our country in the field of
agriculture. Production has gone up thrice in 30 years based on these varieties due to the green
revolution.

wwfy wiea: yow fowd ¥ @, Sfka % A @1 So far as registration is concerned, we may not
include that in registration we include only the new varieties.

SHRI R.S. ARORA: That is what we are looking for. Next, although we would like to have an
effective Act and reasonable provisions for implementing them, we have just said that since this is an
cconomic act, for the time being we could do away with it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will consider the extant varieties.

SHRI R.S. ARORA: The imprisonment provisions need to be deleted or, if possible, to be
reduced. It can be done whatever way the Committee feels right.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: We will consider this aspect.
SHRI R.S. ARORA: Very kind of you. Thank you very much.
MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you. We now adjourn.
(The Committee then adjourned)
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Prof. Anil K. Guprta
(The witness was called in and he took his seat)

MR. CHAIRMAN: [ welcome you to this sitting of the Joint Committec on Protection of Plant
Varictics and Farmers' Rights Bill, 1999.

As you are aware, the Protection of Plant Varieties and Farmers’ Rights Bill, 1999 was introduced in
the Lok Sabha on the 14th December, 1999. It stands referred to the Joint Committee of both the Houses
of Parliament.

To achicve the desired objective the Protection of Plant Varieties and Farmers’ Rights Bill, 1999
sceks to provide for the establishment of an authority with necessary powers to give an effective system
for protection of the rights of the plant breeders and farmers and to encourage the plant breeders by way
of providing incentives, etc. to develop new varieties of plants and to give effect to certain articles of the
agreement on Tradc-Related Aspects of Intellectual Property Rights and to provide for matters
conncected therewith and incidental thereto. In this connection, the Committee would like to hear your
views on the various provisions of the proposed Bill to enable them to prepare and present the Report to

the Houses.

Before you start your cvidence, I would like to make it clear that your evidence shall be treated as
public and is liable to be published unless you specifically desire that all or any part of the evidence given
by you is to be treated as confidential. However, I may also make it clear to you that even though you
might desire your evidence to be treated as confidential, such evidence is liable to be made available to
the Members of Parliament. I may, however, add that the proccedings of the Committee are confidential
and are not to be made public till the Report of the Committee is presented to Parliament.

We have gone to many States and we have had discussion with scientists and other people on this
Bill. Now, we would like to have some view from Shri Gupta on law aspects. Shri Gupta, you may now
start expressing your views.

PROF. ANIL K. GUPTA: Thank you very much for the opportunity given. Apart from being a
Professor of IIM, Ahmedabad, I also work with the voluntary organisations, Sristi and Honeybee
Network.

I would like to submit my suggestion point by point on different articles of the draft Bill that is before
the Parliament. I would be very happy to clarify important issues.

The first is about the definition of variety. There are three issues here. One is the universal criterion
that has been used for a varicty to be qualificd as a varicty, that is, plant or population should have
distinctiveness, uniformity and stability. Research has shown that many populations in tpe raiq-fcd
rcgions are buffering in naturc. They are not uniform and they show stabnhty overa longer pgnod qf time.
So, we might like to include in the rules of business or definition that 'dnstmcnvc‘:nen.. uniformity apd
stability may be appraiscd in the case of varictics particularly for the rain-fed regions in the longer life
cycle; in other words, instead of three ycars, we might test their statistics over nine years or six ycars as

the case may be.

The second is in some of the countrics, particularly in France and China, thg definition inc_lu'des
improvements made in or about wild discovered plants. In vic\y of the large popyhpon of the me'dnungl
plants in our country, many of which show uniformity, distinctiveness and stability in their behaviour, it
might be uscful to broaden the scope of registration of the plant varicties by including the wild discovered

plants.
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The third issue is this. When it comes to what are the plant varieties, which would be registered,
the term ‘terminator’ has been used, which is the populist term. The scientific term for that is GURT.
We should restrict ourselves only to the scientific term rather than the populist term. It should be
subject to review after a few years of research and experience on the subject. In other words, we
should not close our doors completely on this technology because it helps us, in some sense. In other
words, it is a safety against genetic pollution. GURT is a safety against genctic pollution. From that
point of view, we should not closc our doors on this technology. We should say that it would be
reviewed after three years or so. In case we want that this technology must be developed within the
country, we should be feeling free to develop this technology.

So far as farmers’ varicties are concerned, I have four submissions to make. One is that we
should make an exception in terms of novelty criteria which requires that a variety should not have
been sold within the previous one year. My suggestion would be that we should provide exception for
the farmers’ variety that it should not have been sold as a branded seed within the last one year.

Even if it has been sold otherwise, that should not disqualify the farmers variety to be considered
for protection.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is in the Act already.

PROF. ANIL K. GUPTA: No. The provision would be that if a farmers has sold it locally, that
would not disqualify that seed to be considered as protection for the farmers variety. Novelty should
not be lost if the sced has been sold locally and without a brand name. It should be considered to be
lost only when this has been sold in a commercial manner with a brand name. Otherwise, a lot of
farmers varicties will ccase to qualify for the protection because farmers might have exchanged them
within the few villages. There is a need for making a provision.

If the farmer has developed a varicty and wants protection as a plant variety then one of the
clauses which will make the variety ineligible for protection is that the variety should not have been
sold within last one year. It is true for the commercial varicties and varieties developed by the seed
companies. But when it comes to the varieties developed by the farmers, we should provide that it
should not have been sold as a branded seed in the last one year, though it may have been sold
within the ncighbourhood within the last few ycars. That would mean that the varieties which have
been developed in the last four or five years might well qualify to be protected as farmers’ variety. It
is because the farmers arc not aware that they should not be selling it.

SHRI AJOY CHAKRABORTY: You are referring to the sale in the local area.

PROF. ANIL K. GUPTA: It is because most of the farmers who have developed a variety might
have sold it in the local arca. Now, on that ground the new variety which they have selected or bred
would not qualify to be called as plant variety. Now, that should not happen. It is because the law
does not discriminate at thc moment between sale as a branded goods and sale as otherwise. The
exception which I am pleading for is only for the farmers' varicty, not for companies and not for
other applicants.

SHRI AJOY CHAKRABORTY: Not for breeders too?

PROF. ANIL K. GUPTA: It is only for the farmer breeders. Other breeders must be aware that
they cannot claim protection on things which have been sold otherwise, because then it becomes a
public property. According to tHe law of novelty, the grace period is only one year. But in the case of
farmers, the grace period should be longer.

SHRI AJOY CHAKRABORTY: Why are you pleading for them? What is the reason for that?

PROF. ANIL K. GUPTA: I am requesting that they may be permitted to get the benefit of plant
variety protection even if they have sold it without identification of it as a branded product. The other
requirement is that they should bring the complete data of parent lines from which the variety is
derived. This may not be possible for a farmer to develop or provide who has made the selection.
The authority should undertake to meet the cost of generating such data that may be required for
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registration of the varicty generated by the farmers. But farmers need not bear the cost bocause the
small farmers who has developed the variety has done his or her job. We cannot expect the farmer to
collect all the data and to provide it in the form the authority will consider it appropriate and
acceptable. I am not saying that data is not required. I am only saying that authority could pay the
cost of generating this data on the variety which the farmer has developed.

In some countries the provision is that if a variety is developed based on a discovered plant, for
example in Australia, then both who has discovered it and who improved upon it, are supposed to be
the breeders. In our case we have not defined the eligibility of those who has discovered the mew
plant vis-a-vis who improved it. Therefore, it might be useful to include those who discovered the new
plants as co-brecders along with those who improved them or select them. This will go in favour of
individual as well as community which have discovered the new plants. They may not be able to
stabilisc them as varieties which a small seed company might be able to do ecasily.

Every applicant who presents his claim for a new variety should be required to state that the
material or knowledge used in developing the claimed intellectual property has been obtained lawfully
and rightfully. The lawful means if an applicant is submitting a variety for protection before the
authority and it is based on the selection from the farmers' land within the country or from some
other country then it is required to be disclosed that it is selection from such and such land race and
such and such community. Secondly, the rightful means whether the person concerned has taken the
informed consent of that community or that locality from where the plant which has been improved
upon in the claimed variety was obtained.

As per the Convention of Biological Diversity provisions, this invariably should happen in every
country. However, till those laws come into being and become enforceable the plant variety Act
should provide for the same. India has been pleading for this provision to be made in international
laws. Our country has been saying that the US Government should require its applicant before its
patent office to disclose that they have obtained the material on which they are secking patent
lawfully and rightfully. When we are asking US Government to include that provision in their law, we
should include a similar provision in our law so that every applicant in our country makes the
declaration and any violation of that declaration will be a cognizable offence and the person
concerned can be held responsible for making a false declaration. Therefore, it will be a legal validity
and should be obligatory before every appllicant. So, if a sced company comes forward with a
submission and this company has made a selection in let us say wild pea land race in Andhra Pradesh
or other area, it must be obliged to disclose so that it has done so.

Another provision is about the invitation of objection under section 25. It is a case where within
the period that the variety is shared, the information about registration is shared with the people, the
objection should be invited and if there are not received by then, these are not sustainable. Since
large number of communities, societies or NGOs at large may not have access to the register that the
authority may maintain, arrangement should be made that this should be widely shared and should be
available in local languages on public domain website so that communities which want to access it or
NGOs which are working with them can access this information in the local language as casily as
possible because the country is planning to have information kiosks very widely in the country.

There is also a provision when the variety in question is subjected to some dispute or has to be
examined, it is the responsibility of the applicant to provide the seed that is requested by the
authority at his cost to the authority. In the case of farmers’ vareity such an exception will have to be
made that the authority will collect such sced at its own cost and n9t at the fafmen' cost. So, if the
farmer in Rajasthan or Bihar has developed some variety then he is not required to bring the seed
and deposit it to the authority but the authority will undertake to collect the sced from the farmers’

doorstep and meet the cost of collecting the same.

On the issue of benefit sharing, there are three or four iu\.m here. One u thnt.it has been
mentioned that the benefits will be shared by the accruals from different sources including from the

breeders.
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First of all the total and seed that will be sold by the breeder is a very small share as against the
total quantity of grain which is produced on the basis of improved varicties which is very large. So
instead of restricting the revenue in the gene fund only from the income from breeder, we should
have a small cess, may be 50 paise per quintal or one rupee a tonne or whatever amount we may
consider appropriate—should be collected from the market yards where improved variety products
come for the trading. That will be must larger volume and the amounts gained by the Authority will
be substantial. Therefore, the benefits for the community which have contributed to the development
of varicty will also be substantial.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do you want to imposc somec fees or something like that?

PROF. ANIL K. GUPTA: Sir for example, in sugarcane you have a development levy of 10
paise per quintal which is used for making roads and for other developments in the sugarcane region.
Similarly, if you put even 5 paise or 10 paise per quintal levy on the products of the varieties which
are improved, then we will have much larger share of revenue to come to the fund rather than putting
a cess on the seed. We do not want seeds to become costlier. My point is while breeders may be
allowed to share but if the fund has to become operational and substantial then the amount of income
which will come from the breeders in the initial year will be very small. It is because we do not want
to increase the cost of seed. The replacement ratio of the seed is very low in our country. In mustard
which has the highest replacement ratio it is 30 per cent. In other crops it ranges from five to seven
per cent. Now whatever cost we impose will ultimately be passed on to the customer. Ultimately the
farmer is going to pay the cost of the seed. Therefore, rather than insisting on the entire share of the
benefit to be made from the obligatory contribution from the breeder what I am requesting is that we
should put a levy on the consumer who buy the grains in the market yard and they will pay a small
cess on the transactions that place in the market yard and this will come to the fund as a statutory
contribution. It will be much larger fund then ever would we be able to collect from the salc of seeds.
The National Gene Fund should also provide for certain other kind of compensation to the
community which are conserving land races even if thesc have not been used for developing the
improved varieties.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We do not have a Gene Fund.

PROF. ANIL K. GUPTA: Sir, it says that it will provide compensation to farmers whose varities
or land races have been used for developing improved variety. I am saying that even if communities
which are conserving land races have not yet contributed to an improved vatiety they should have
incentive to conserve it because we might need them in future. So, Gene Fund should provide
incentives for conservation in situ of those land races which may not have yet been used for improved
varitics. So, the scope of benefit should be widened and therefore the Government should make
special contribution to this. Today for in situ conservation we have no policy or fund in the country at
all. There is not even one rupee which is allocated in the Central budget for conservation of bio-
diversity in situ by the farmers. It is assumed that because they are poor people, they have no
choices, and they have no irrigation so they will in any way conserve the land races. So, why
compensate them and why provide them any incentive. The result is that whenever irrigation comes
whenever some development takes place the first casualty is a land race. For example if Narmada
Canal comes in Gujarat which I hope it will, then a lot of land races will disappear from the
command arca of the Narmada project immediately unless there are incentives to farmers in thosc
region to conserve the land races there is no reason why they will grow them. They will grow the
improved varictics. So, I am suggesting that the National Gene Fund should provide incentives also
for thosc land which have not been used in developing the improved varieties.

There is a very interesting provision in the Plant Varicty Act of Russian Federation. It says that
the income from the breeding is tax free for two years. This I think is a very important provision
because we should provide incentives for brecding to take place in our country rather then only
allowing large multinational corporations to dominate the seed industry. So, if we want indigenous
seed industry to come up, then we must provide tax exemption. In Russia they have it for two years. -
We can decide whether it should be two years or three years.
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lj'qr cxample, in infotech and many other industrics, we are giving tax concessions. Many States
arc giving cven other concessions. Likewise, in sced industry, we wanted to provide a cess restriction
but tax concessions should be provided for. At least, in the Russian Federation Law, it is provided in
the Plant Varictics Act itself. In some countries, there is also a provision that in the public sector
institutions, the breeders would reccive a minimum of 15 per cent of the total royalty from the sale of
the intcllectual property i.e. protected Varicty Seeds. We have not provision as such in our Bill but if
we want to rctain good scientists in our public sector research institutions which is, in fact, the
backbone of our country, We should do it. The scientists in the public sector institutions should get a
minimum of 15 per cent. There is such a provision in other countries and they provide that the
breeder would reccive at least 15 per cent of the total income which the institution receives from
licensing. I think it would be useful to provide similar incentives in our country also.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We alrcady have it and the scientists wll get one portion of the royalty.
There is a provision like that.

PROF. ANIL K. GUPTA: But that provision is applicable in any company and for any breeder.
What I am suggesting is that the public scctor institutions which at the moment contribute 80-90 per
cent of the total breeding in the country or may be much more than that do not as yet provide
specific incentives. First of all, they do not protect the vatieties, they do not protect the trade names.
We should insist that the public sector institutions should be protecting their trade marks and
whichever University, be it in Andhra Pradesh or Tamil Nadu, should protect their trade mark names
and only with their licence can the companies or the traders can use their trade mark and income
accruing from the licensing of the trade marks and varieties should be shared with all those have
contributed to the development of those vatieties. It could be either scientists or technicians or both.
The ICAR has cvolved some norms of income sharing only in the case of consultancies but not from
the income from licensing and other things. Therefore, this is only to help the public sector
undertakings to rctain some brilliant scientists who otherwise will be lost from those organisations. It
is not bad also but after all, public sector also has to be sustained in terms of productivity and
fraternity.

In some countrics, there is a provision for what is called innocent infringement. When we define
what is infringement, we cxclude what is called innocent infringement. In other words, if some
farmers not knowing the provisions of the law have sold it, then we should try to protect such farmers
because the loss to the company will be only marginal. We can say that upto one tonne or 50 quintals
or whatever size it be, if somcbody has sold their seeds, we should consider that as innocent
infringement and also if the authority is satisficd that it is not a deliberate intention of the farmer to
break thc law. If we have the provision, we can exclude farmer infringers. If we do not have the
provision, then the law will find it hands bound and tied in this regard.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do you want this if it has becn done due to ignorance also? Should any
punishment be given then?

PROF. ANIL K. GUPTA: If it is done innocently, then we do not punish such a person. If a law
is new, then it will take time to sink in our society. So, we should not penalise people right away.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The qucstion is, if there is a provision like that, then everybody can say that
he does not know the law or the system and all that.

PROF. ANIL K. GUPTA: Ignorance of the law is not an excuse and that is true also. That is a
well cstablished legal view. But I am suggesting that where the violation is of such a nature that it
does not appear to be intentional, then the authority may take a \.riew on whether it is innocent
infringement. It is upto the authority to decide. Thesc arc the points which I want to submit.
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SHRI AJOY CHAKRABORTY: Are you in favour of the entry of foreign multinationals in this
field?
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PROF. ANIL K. Gl}P‘l‘A: The point is not whether I am in favour of it or not. The point is
whether I can compete with them. My preference does not matter. What matters is my determination
nnd‘ my capacity to compete with them. I personally feel that we are absolutely competent. There is a
National Sorghum Rescarch Programme based in Hyderabad. ICRISAT is an international research
centre, but our varicties have been out-yielding the ICRISAT varieties for the last several years. The
incentives for our Sorghum Rescarch Programme are much lesser and yet they have been able to out-
perform the ICRISAT varieties.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: ICRISAT is not a multinational organisation. It is not like a private
commercial firm. It is an international organisation, not a multinational organisation, in the sense in
which he is saying. It is not a big company; almost all their staff are Indians and only a few Germans
and others are there. But the majority of the staff are Indians and they are located at Hyderabad. So,
the comparison with ICRISAT is not a valid one.

But, let us see the amount of money that the MNCs spend on rescarch. How can our
organisations go anywhere near their spending? Take the example of the Information Technology
industry. We talk so much of the IT industry. Now, there is a big crash. The income has increased in
the IT industry. But individually, the Indian companies, with their own brands, are out-beating the
Western companies.

PROF. ANIL K. GUPTA: If you look at the capability of Indian research and the output that it
has delivered in terms of the yicld gains, in terms of the varieties that they have produced, in terms of
their stability and in terms of their overall performance and make a balance-sheet of this output, it is
much higher than anybody else in the world. But I do realise that the last 10 years have been years of
stagnation and I also realise that the Indian systems have got a flat and can become more efficient.
Despite that, I am a great believer in our capacity. I think, this capacity, given a chance to perform in
a competitive environment, with the protection of intellectual property rights can outsmart any
competition.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: I taught in English Universities for 15 years and I know about our
boys. If they are taught in Calcutta and if they work here, they do not perform that well. But when
they go to Western countries, they perfom very well because the environment is different. Oul: people
have the potential and their potential is confirmed by what they are doing when they go outside. We
are not talking about the potential. But what is their realisation over the last 19 to 15 years a
compared with multinationals? I agree, the potential is there, but the environme'nt is not there. .lt is
very expensive to create the environment. We can talk big, but the actual realisation is very little.

PROF. ANIL K. GUPTA: I give you only two examples. The first is that this law of proposed
Bill is one step in the direction that you are secing to make the envirpnment in this country available
to the producers of research of this country so that they can produce intellectual property of the same
kind here rather than in America. You have argued already that they perform so well there because
their intellectual property is protected there. They are not able to perform so well here because the
intellectual property is not protected here. We woulfl like the intellectual property of indigenous
innovator to be protected with the same degree of seriousness and freedom as it is available abroad.
The intellectual capital will not flow out of this country if t'he protection to that capital is available in
the country. If the intellectual property is not protected in the country, there is only one way out
which is flow out of the intellectual capital from the country.

You are very senior economist. I have read your books and met you carlie;. Your village studies
have been an essential reading for all of us. You would agree that wh?n the intellectual property is
not respected in any socicty and it is not protected, it finds its own niche wherever it is respected.
That is how America has attracted the best brains all over the .world. We may have exported 10,000
to 20,000 such people. There are 20 million people more.quahﬁed than tboae'who have gone there
from this country. The only thing is that they are waiting for an opportunity.

. B DASGUPTA: I agree. But I will give an example. Qbout 30 ycars ago, since 1966
or arlztl}ndntlhl:l{?imc, the phcnomen;g of Green Revolution started. This technology led to tripling of
Indian food production in three decades. That has been the biggest technological achievement as far
as India is concerncd. What was the technology involved and what were the intellectual property
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rights involved? Prof. Swaminathan went to CYMMIT in Mexico and brought a few kilograms of
foundation seeds. He went to IRRI and brouhgt some foundation seeds. That was all purchased. The
rest was done by the Punjab Agricultural University. They twisted the obvious things with our own
realities. They purchased their own seeds. Then, they distributed the seceds to the farmers. The
farmers multiplied it. So, the Green Revolution technology excepting for a few kilograms purchased
from Mexico and from Manila in 1966 had been completely indigenous. It did not involve and
intellectual property rights as such. Even the IRRI also is not run as an MNC nor the CYMMIT is
run as an MNC. No MNC was involved. Still the biggest achievement in India so far is in terms of its
impact on the largest number of people. That has been achieved. Virtually, it did not have anything
to do with the intellectual property rights.

PROF. ANIL K. GUPTA: To be fair to the scientists, the research was not just by importing
those seeds. There was much more research. The consequence of not protecting the intellectual
property right is that the scientists of these institutions have to beg—pardon me saying this—before
the bureaucrats in the ministry for every penny that they need for their rescarch. If we want the
institutions of this country to be autonomous and as modernised and as buoyant with vitality as any
other international institution is, we will have to give them freedom. We have to liberate them from
the shackles of bureaucracy. If they are liberated from the shackles of bureaucracy, they will be able
to raise their own revenue. You take the case of Mahyco which is the top company of this country in
the private sector. How did Mahyco begin? It began with the seeds of Pusa. It multiplied and sold
those sceds. That was the beginning of this company.

Today, it is onc of the major seed companies of the third world. Pusa did not get any penny of
this brand. If you do not provide any protection of the trade marks, the Pusa Institute scientists will
remain dependent. Then the legislators will decide whether there is a cut or not because scientists
have least political power in the system.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: We had a meeting with the scicntists in Ludhiana. One of the
things suggested was that there should be collective patenting or institutional patenting. Then the
fruits of that income can be shared by working on some kind of a formula between the scientists
individually and the institution as such depending on the contribution which has been made by
different scientists and also by the institutions. Can we get any help from you on that?

FROF. ANIL K. GUPTA: I mentioned this before you came. There are two issues. One is
inventor and the other is assignee. Individual means it could be 25 breeders and scientists who
become as inventor. The varicty will be assigned in the name of the institution, in this case university.
It will decide how much share of the licence fee or other things will be shared with the team and
retained with the institute for other incentives for other breeders because there may be breeders who
are dealing with different material developing new varicties.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do you wish to add any other points?

PROF. ANIL K. GUPTA: I would only like to add that with all the causes that the lcarned
Member has suggested, the protection would help the recognition of the grass-root inventories, the
smaller companies and public sector resecarch. If we want our research to become financially self-
reliant, we want to stop the exodus of scientists then we will have to provide them a level playing
field.

Thank you very much.
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DR. BIBLAB DASGUPTA: If you look at some of the agreements entered into with some of
the multi-national companies, it specifically says that the seeds cannot be used and all that. Have you
seen some of these agreements?

st atfe %o ymi: It says, ‘Provided that a farmer shall not be entitled for such a right in case the
sale is for reproduction under commercial marketing arrangements.’
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DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: You have one joint multinational body on one side and on the
other side is the small farmer.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The question of ignorance will come and if through ignorance it has been
done, then there must be some softncss about it.
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DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: Have you seen some of the agreements between Monsanto and
their contract farmers?

SHRI ANIL KUMAR GUPTA: There are two issues. One is, if a company has contracted seed
production to a farmer, it specifies whether it will buy back the entire production or it will buy 40 per
cent or 50 per cent, the best part of it. It also allows the farmer to retain it without using the
company’s seed name or brand name. Sometimes, they also keep some isolation. For example, they
will say that we will exclude the four lines on all the sides of the farm because there may be some
genetic pollution, i.c., pollution may have come from other neighbouring farms. So, they will not take
the seed of the border line for the purpose of seed collection because they want pure seeds. They will
only take from the middle. The farmer has grown the entire field. Then, farmers should have been
compensated. So, under the contract, they will provide for the price which farmer will find
reasonable. It is a contract which farmer is free to accept or not to accept.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: What about reuse? In a number of contracts, they do not permit
reuse.

SHRI ANIL KUMAR GUPTA: That is only available under UPOV, 91 and in our country we
have not accepted UPOV, 91.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: Monsanto is already having some contracts where you do not allow
reuse of seeds.

SHRI ANIL KUMAR GUPTA: So far in our country, there is no contract under which a farmer
can be disallowed from using a particular seed. Of course, hybrid seeds we purchase every ycar, cven
if it is a public sector company or a private sector company. But in the case of seed sold by the
companies, there is no clause which I have come across as yet and I would like to be educated in this
country where the farmers have been prevented from getting the seeds for its reuse. This has arisen
only in the European countries. That provision is not included in our Bill.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: Monsanto is now becoming quite important, say in Maharashtra, in
a number of things. Have you seen the contracts between Monsanto with the contract farmers? I have
not seen those contracts, but I have seen extracts of those contracts and that does not allow reuse.

SHRI ANIL KUMAR GUPTA: If it is a seed production contract, then it is the property of the
company because it has paid for it. It wants to buy. So, when you sign the contract, you accept it or
you do not accept it. If you think that it is not reasonable, then you should not accept it. It is a law of
contract where if I enter into a relationship with known conditions, then I am bound by those
conditions. If I do not want to accept those conditions, I should not enter into a contract. If farmers
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decide collectively tlu.t they will not enter into any contract with Moasanto, then Monsanto will not
be able to grow a single seed in this country.

MR. CHAIRMQN: Thank you very much for your valuable advice, Prof. Anil Kumar Gupta.
We will try to consider your suggestions at a later stage. You may leave now.

(Prof. Anil Kumar Gupta then withdrew)
WITNESSES EXAMINED
1. Shri P.N. Lekhi, Citizens' Commission for National Issues
2. Dr. Y.P. Anand, Citizens’ Commission for National Issues
3. Shri B.K. Keayla, Citizens’ Commission for National Issues

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. Lekhi and your collcagues. We have been waiting to have
your opinion on this Bill. As you are aware, this Committee is examining the Protection of Plant
Varieties and Farmers’ Rights Bill, 1999. Before we start the discussion, we would like you to
introduce yourself and your colleagues to the members of the Committee.

(INTRODUCTION OF WITNESSES)

MR. CHAIRMAN: As Shri P.N. Lekhi is a senior advocate, I would request him to initiate the
discussion by giving his valuable views to the Committee on this Bill.
SHRI P.N. LEKHI: Thank you, Sir. May I draw the attcntion of the august Committce to what
is annexed to the Bill as the Statement of Objccts and Reasons. I am rcading from paragraph 4,
clause (ii):
“India has developcd commendable strength in agricultural rescarch. Indian brecders
working mainly in the public research system have developed a large number of new
varicties. In the absence of plant breeders’ rights, these varicties would be frecly available
to others for exploitation. New varicties developed on the basis of these varictics could get
protected in other countrics without any bencfit accruing to Indian institutions/
organisations, whereas, the availability of varictics developed in countrics which provide
for plant breeders’ rights would be restricted in India.”

Sir, I continue to quote:

“Thercfore, putting a systcm of plant breeders’ rights in action through law in India would
provide protection to the public rescarch system varictics developed by them. In future
rescarchers’ access to foreign germplasm may get linked to the provision of plant brecders’

rights.”
Sir, the next one 4(iii), in my view, is very important and dangerous. I quotc:

“(iii) in the absence of plant breeders’ rights, foreign companics would be hesitant to
organisc buy-back production of sceds in India for export to their countrics for fear of
unauthoriscd usc of their genetic material;

(iv) a system of plant brecders’ rights is also a uscful adjunct to a lcgislative framework
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which is being formulated by the Ministry of Environment and Forests in accordance with
the provisions of the Convention on Biological Diversity.

5. Keeping in view the above position, the Protection of Plant Varietics and Farmers' Rights Bill,
1999 proposes to achieve the following objectives:—

(i) to stimulative investments for research and development both in the public and the
private sectors for the development of new plant varieties by cnsuring appropriate returns
on such investments;

AN

(ii) to facilitate the growth of the seed industry in the country through domestic and
foreign investment which will ensure the availability of high quality sceds and planting
material to Indian farmers.”

What I find hidden in the entire Bill is a lot of composition on the compliments that have been
paid to the research by foreign investment is an element which is coming for the first time in this
country. How did it come? It needs, in the context, to be understood so that we can appreciate the
text of this Bill. May I submit that there is a lot of debate whether there should or should not be the
right of patenting.

We have known the entire structure of this particular Bill is on the same lines as the Copyright,
Patent and Trade Mark Acts. But for the last one century whenever intellectual property has been a
part of legal profession, nobody had touched agriculture. This is for the first time that what nature
will help us, not factories, is soil. It is the soil which no human being has produced. It is given by
nature. For the first time we are entering into an uncharted field — a field totally uncharted.

I have just now heard my predecessor saying what is the meaning of product. We have taken the
word product from the viewpoint of something which is manufactured in a factory. Seed may be
loosely called a product; but in the context in which I am going to make my presentation, seed is not
at all product like a product produced in a factory. It is there that the danger lies.

I take you back to 1947. That was the year in which this GATT agreement first came into being.
The Precamble of GATT stated:

“Trade and economic endeavours should be conducted with a view to raising standard of
living ensuring full employment and the large and steadily growing volume of real income.”

Thus, the basic objectives were reinforced in the Marrakesh agreement which established the
W.T.O. Historically GATT enforced, failed in tariff reduction worldwide until the Uruguay Round
which ended in 1994. The trade negotiations focussed on non-agricultural growth mainly because the
U.S. wanted to protect its farm sector.

Over the years as the corporate interests of developed countries have expanded, these countries
have also lobbied for more issues to be incorporated in GATT and WTO.

Its agenda now include ‘agriculture’. When I have referred to the last part of foreign investment,
obviously I am taking you back to the history that for the first time, because of the compulsions now
of the farmer lobby in the US, this particular pressure world-wide is being built to introduce the
concept of patents, trade-marks and probably copyright also slowly and slowly in the farm sector also.
Will it be consistent with the aim with which the entire exercisc is being done? Would such a
liberalised approach in the agriculture sector be in some way an endeavour conducted with a view to
raising the standard of living, ensuring full employment and a large and steady growth?

In Today's The Times of India, on the first page is a very interesting news items. It says:

“Garibi Hatao—may have just been a catchy slogan for Indira Gandhi but in the heydays
of the licence-permit raj in the ‘70s and ‘80s—when rationing, price controls and
nationalisation were the order of the day — poverty did fall by two per cent every year. By
contrast, there was hardly any reduction in poverty between 1991 and 1997, a period
marked by free market economic reforms.
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What the data show is that reforms bave produced unprecedented econotfiic growth but
have not worked for the poor. The NSS round conducted in 1997 estimated that every
third person in India — that is 34.4 per cent of the population — lived in conditions of
absolute poverty, the same percentage that obtained in 1990.”

Here, when considering this Bill, one has to comsider not whether it is a good draft but
whether it serves the purpose for which ostensibly it is being presented. It is with that view that I
am going back to the recent history. Today, it is a lobby from a highly developed country, and that
is the farm lobby, which is trying the lesser developed countrics to follow a regime which will not at
all be to the benefit of the lesser developed countries but will serve the purpose of that highly
developed economic structure. Do, we by our own legislation, seek to perpetuate it? That is the
question which I am asking myself and I am posing before this august gathering.

Now, these rounds were like kitty parties. WTO has 132 members at present. Out of these, 98
are countrics like ours. The rest of 24 comprises of very developed countries like the US, the
European Union, Canada and Japan. The dictation in WTO and the regime that is sought to be
developed is dictated not democratically but under great economic pressure like a barter agreement
where they say ‘you give this concession, we will give you this return’. Now, we are legislating this
Bill ostensibly thinking that the Seeds Act of 1966 is no longer useful. Do we need a change?
Whenever a law is changed, in the court of law, there are four rules by which any change of law is
adjudged as to whether it would be efficacious or not. The rule was laid in 1584 and is still being
followed. We call it Hayden’s rule although it came out of a murder case.

But the rule is, what was the mischief, what was the law for awarding punishment for the
mischief, what mischief it had not provided for, what method we are providing for the mischief and
the reason for adopting that particular method. Let us test this particular aspect. I am deviating a
little from the presentation I have prepared.

Just now, a very respected Member raised the question of a small farmer. Plcase have a look at
Clause 65 of this particular Act. According to that, he will be punished, and he cannot escape. That
is the diffculty if you read it with Clause 61. So, the question today is, how many farmers you are
going to throw to test and try their cases. As far as these cases are concerned, it nfight be a
paradise for the lawyers, but ruin for the nation. That is the question, which I am posing before

you today.

Continuing with my presentation, if I may refer to a very interesting case which came out
recently, that was the case of basmar? The case of basmati rice is also before us. The special
variety of rice is known for its fragrance. It is grown in the foothills of the Himalayan mountains.
The issue became contentious when it was found that a US company had identified the molecule
that gives fragrance to the rice. This basmati rice was grown in the US grecnhouses, and the
particular sced developed by biotechnology was patented in US. If 'thc US Govenupea?l had not,
just for the purpose of, I will say, public relations, supported the Indian Government in its eﬁors to
get that particular patent annulled, today no Indian farmer would be able to sell the basmaii rice,
which is the produce of this country. For matters li.ke. this, .th'erc is not only no provision, it is, in
fact, as I see historically, a new form of economic imperialism that is coming. We provide our
police force, we provide our law courts and we provide our laws. Noy. they neced not send lhc}r
army, they need not send their police force and they need not send their laws because our laws will
punish our own people.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: This question had been raised again and again in this Committee.
Clause 31 of the Bill says:

“Nothing contained in this Act shall affect the right of a farmcr"to save, usc, exchange, share

or sell his farm produce of a variety protected under this act.

i ificati being said is that if the
Now, the problem is, whenever we ask for a cla.nﬁcatnon. what 1s
farmer\ivs not u};ing it for commercial purposes with his brand-name and all that, he can usec the
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seeds purchased from the company in any way. But what you are saying is completely different. You
are saying that Clause 61 read with Clause 65, read together, actually negate this particular Clause. Is
that the legal opinion?

SHRI P.N. LEKHI: I was coming to Clause 31, but in the context, this was only an introductory
before I analyse the Bill to the extent I can within the short time that was available.

Till I studied this very deeply, I could not understand the danger that really stared in the face. [
was completely taken aback. Therefore, as a citizen, I think it is my duty to at least, at this stage,
voice my concern for the sake of my own countrymen.

Now, continuing further, one of the very newly used yardsticks, ever since WTO regime came, is
that exports have increased by 25 per cent in the last four years.

This 25 per cent increase is not due to increase among countries like ours. Countries like ours
contribute only 0.03 per cent in the total figure of world trade. Where does this 25 per cent get lost?
It gets lost when you allow foreign investors to come here with their developed techniques.

There has been no reasearch laboratory in the country where treatment to the seed has been
done. Such laboratories are there in developed countries. We are afraid and rightly so. What happens
is, bio-diversity in the soil will be totally lost. The land will become totally dependent on chemical
manure. Slowly and slowly, over a period of time, say ten to fifteen years, the earth will become
totally barren, like talcum powder. That is the effect of injecting more and more chemical manure for
the purpose of higher production. Without that particular assistance, the seed which will be produced
will not at all yicld any product. Then those seeds will become one crop seeds, not multi-crop seeds.
There will be a total loss of diversity.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do you want to say that they will become the terminator seeds?

SHRI P.N. LEKHI: Ultimately they will become terminators. It is like a cancer. Cancer is a
human cell eating another human cell. It is not like Malaria or some other disease. By bringing this
law into force, you will be introducing into the farming sector a cancer which will destroy all that we
have sustained historically over the year. This is a very serious thing. I will give four reasons why this
particular Bill is not at all good for the country. Those who drafted the Bill have not done their home
work well. Have we got any list of the plants and the seeds which we have developed, put down in
any register? No, we do not have such a list. How are we to comply with the Objects and Reasons
mentioned in the Bill. In the Statement of Objects and Reasons it is mentioned, ‘A system of plant
breeders rights is also a useful adjunct to a legislative framework which is being formulated by the
Ministry of Environment and Forests in accordance with the provisions of the convention on
biological diversity. Where are the supporting documents before us in order to comment upon this? I
do not think these documents were ever placed before Parliament. I do not think those who drafted
this particular Act looked into the supporting material to know whether this Bill will be in fulfilment
of this particular object or not. There should be some reason to back this staement. We are framing
a law in an area into which nobody has ventured so far in the country. This is an entirely new field of
legislation. There is no private laboratory here—of course, I only come to know about things from
papers or some printed material—which has been producing seeds, except CSIR and other
Government-owned organisations. But there are private companies in the developed countries where
this particular exercise is being done.

That particular aspect has to be looked into. When this Statement of Objects and Reasons was
presented, whether it was read as & necessary adjunct to a legislation or that this really conveys why a
particular lcgislation has to be made, to be examined in-depth.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Shri Lekhi, this Committee will be very much grateful to you if you could
kindly give us your suggestions over the sections of the Bill. It may be either in regard to drafting or
may be in regard to outlook of the drafting. These will be very useful for this Committee.

SHRI P.N. LEKHI: After I give you the reasons, after I cover the point on which I am speaking,
I will surely come to this aspect. I am proposing to do that.
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DR. BIPLAB DASGI.JPTA: Let me apologise as I have to go within five minutes from now to
nftend to some otl?er meeting. But [ am very grateful to you that you have given your free and frank
vicws. On thns.pom.t, could you please explain a bit. Section 31 says about the Farmer's right that
‘Nothmg contained in this Act shall affect the right of a farmer to save, use, exchange, share or sell
his farm Prodx.sce of a varicty protected under this Act: provided that a farmer shall not be entitled
for such right in case where the salc is for the purposc of reproduction undcr a commercial marketing
am_mgcmcnt.' t!le impression one gets here, is that the farmer's rights are protected. But you are
s}x:yu;g that scctions 61 to 65 taken togethcr may be favourable. What is the argument in favour of
that?

SHRI P.N. LEKHI: It is a bad drafting. Law needs to be understood by both the legal man as
well as common man. Law is not like a manira which is for only highly educated persons and lcgal
persons. It is for cverybody. We arc addressing our law to a farmer and that farmer must know it in a
very simplc and unambiguous language. It should not bc such that he has to go to a lawyer to
undcrstand it. So, this is a bad drafting.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: The title of the Bill is “Thc Protcction of Plant Varicties and
Farmer’s Rights Bill.” But there is nothing of farmers' Rights Bill there. That is what we feel.

SHRI P.N. LEKHI: I will come to the title and conscquences of farmers’ rights. As a matter of
fact, it is taking away every right from thc farmcrs.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: This is the opinion of the Committee, in gencral that there should
be a separate chapter on farmers’ rights. Now, there are two opinions. Some fecl that putting the
right itself would be against the right. Some will enjoy customary rights. While some others fcel that
there should be a separate chapter about farmers' rights.

If this is the case, certainly, the Committec would like to know what should be donc, what
should be incorporated in the scctions?

SHRI P.N. LEKHI: There is no nced of legislating anything for their rights and propcrty. This is
the right about utilising a particular seed, particular plant, and varicty. The title is mislcading. It is
“The Protection of Plant Varietics And Farmers' Rights Bill” The farmers should be taken out if you
are creating rights for the farmers in this Bill. The farmer already has got his right and that right is to
cultivate.

What will a new Chapter on farmers’ rights give to the farmers whether it is Land Reforms Act
or any Act? This Bill has nothing to do with the farmers’ rights. It is totally a misnomer. l} is a Bill
for the protection of plant varicties. [ do not know if plants have got any rights. lt' is fo: the
protection of those who are creating some ncw varictics of plants. So, if it is brecders, it might be
morc logical. I read the whole Bill over and over again. Where are the rights of tpc farn,crs
mentioncd? The farmer has got privileges. There is no definition of rights at all. There is ccrtainly
indication of taking away what hc has been enjoying all thesc ycars.

SHRI BIPLAB DASGUPTA: We want farmer's rights. Then what should be there?
SHRI ANIL GUPTA: As a lawyer, I have to do somc home work.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You can give it in black and white.
The farmers should be our main concern, not the multi-nation'al companics. But how to put it in
the form of a law? How can it be incorporated? We nced advice on that.

SHRI ANIL GUPTA: I will put it in black and white. But I must mak; one caution. lr} 1992
when Mr. Bill Clinton started his elcction campaign, he was one of the biggest pmpagn.?duu of
WTO. He said “whercver commercial interests are involyed. I will do my best to farmers.” Today,
this Bill appears to be the fulfilment of the election promise. Kindly look into it and avoid it. We are

not filling the manifesto of a foreigner.
MR. CHAIRMAN: It will at least do something.
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SHRI ANIL GUPTA: It will take two or thrce days to pen down. I will do it. My reading will
take a lot of time, particularly on biotcchnology of seceds.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: You may bricfly tcll thc Committee about your vicws on the Bill.

DR. RAJEEV DHAVAN: Lect me say that whatever detailed views we have on the Bill, we
would give them in the form of a note.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Have you not given the note already?

DR. RAJEEV DHAVAN: We have given a preliminary note. I would bricfly talk about various
aspccts of the Bill. My colleagues also may add to it later, if they want.

Firstly, I come to your Statement of Objects and Reasons. I want to make this statement and
rciterate what Shri Keayla has said carlicr. There was a bit of mal-advice in stating that this Bill was
nccessary at this point in time. I will put a legal proposition to you that article 27(3)(b) has to be rcad
subject to article 65S. The important part of article 65 says:

“As far as a dcveloping country is concerned, it may delay the obligation of the provisions of
product patcnts of Scction 5 to such arecas of tcchnology to which it docs not cover for an
additional period of five yecars.”

Therefore, one view is that some sui gengris protection has to be provided now. The other view
is, article 65 in fact overrides article 27(3)(b). I will give the list of WTO countrics that have not
complicd with it. It is our view that most of the countries of the world rcad this configuration as
article 65 giving us an cxtra five years. I think this must be understood. This is quite apart from the
argument that has been made by Shri Keayla and others that lct the review process be over. Are we
obliged to do so? According to the Statement of Objects and Reasons we arc legally obliged to do so.
But, in our submission this is not the casc.

I think one should bear this in mind both in terms of what the legal obligation is and in tcrms of
the various cxigencies. We do not have the gene pool and we do not have a register as to what
varictics would be applied to. One view that would be open to and one intcrpretation that is given to
Clausc 29 of the Bill is that it should not apply to some varietics in public interest. That is a very
hcavy requircment. Pleasc remember that under UPOV-I, it applies to only 24 gencra and the whole
argument of article 27 is that should it extend across the board to UPOV-II or not. Our request to
you would be not to apply to UPOV-II and to apply it across the board. We are concerned with food
security and we arc concerned with farmers. You could very well say that at this point of time, we
will apply it to those varieties which Parliament specifically lists and anything that is connected with
food sccurity should not fall within the domain of this Bill. It is because if we are to provide some
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effective suo genen:s protection, and if we follow UPOV-I when they do not supply all the genera,
then we should be in a position to pick and choose. Please bear this in mind because once this goes
through, then the structure of this Bill is such that it will have drastic consequences worse than some

of the questions that you very kindly had put to the previous team as to what are the implications of
Section 65.

Now what is this Bill about? This is about the breeder. It is not about the farmer and I will come
to that part in a moment. Let us sec how a breeder is defined. The breeder is defined as a person
who has bred and ‘discovered’ or develops any variety. Therefore, any person who comes and says
that he has discovered any variety would be entitled to a breeder right. That right is an exclusive right
to what he has discovered. Now, where does the farmer come into picture? If we say that a farmer is
an
exception, then we are only concerned with the sale saying that here is the breeder’s right, here is the
product and if the farmer uses or sells it, he would not come under this provision. But ultimately, we
are also concerned about something else, not just the farmers transaction from season to scason but
also the farmer's knowledge. One of the questions that the Committee has put to carlier teams— we
were fortunately sitting at the back — is this. if you enlarge this into a chapter on farmers, what
would it contain? You are really saying that you want to protect the farmers’ right apart from
commercial use, and then you are saying that the breeder has the right. But it is the transactional
right of the farmer who is protecting. The country’s entire genetic resources agree that it depends not
just on the farmer selling or using from season to season but it is the farmers’ knowledge. Ultimately,
there is a huge amount of knowledge lying there which can then be commoditised. A breeder means a
persons who has bred, discovered or develops any variety. If somecbody gocs to some arca of Assam
and says that he has discovered a particular variety of banana, how will it hold good? When I had
becn to the Banarsi Sewashram, I found that huge varicties of bananas have been collected by my
friend. He told that he collected it from all over the country. Supposing, he said that he had
discovercd it, then what will happen? That discovery can then be commoditiscd. Our concern is, we
should protect our farmer who has discovered saying that T8 WA sk Ik A W@ A
wwm § W we W § ) e & @ A Y, 7y W s d 2wl v o € ow o v R w1
Yem t oo fewal R R @) frem & T ¥ @ IRW w oW ¥

Mt Tom FHiTe FRE T A TR ) e TR 98 § R ST 3wd el A wm for @ @ ed v@em
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Now, this is the big irony in the Bill. The man who has been using it._ the man who has
discovered it is suddenly reduced to the status of a beneficiary. This is something which you must
bear in mind. This Bill contains onc provision about farmers and no othcr, and that provision is

clausc 31, 9@ GEE W T2 & W ¢ A AT N Rt s dm Rty
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i iew, i " " i in which it is being
Therefore, in my view, if the term “breeder™ is defined in the manner in w i
] i i . We are simply talking of protecting
defined, then we arc not talking about protecting the farmer
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is i the cnvironment of farming and agriculture which we ‘have to protect. I
say ;}H:‘slsb:;sc:u‘::‘;lsr;‘:;f:-ls,ovac preparcd a petition under the WTO 'Only one survives now f:nd that
is in respect of the Statc of Tamil Nudu versus the Union of India in which we have questioned it.
Please remember that agriculture is a State subject. I am not saying that under Anncl:vzs:i you un'mln
g0 on to a Statc subject because the t.eaty is there. We g:vc signed the trcaty. We uln gcnn:}tly‘
transgress. Indja is not governed by the treaty. vt wen & m‘-‘";;":ab‘ .; proper consultation wi
the States, AT T § B Twgdesh & WA A T s :
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_That Report is confidential. In fact, it was never revealed to anybody. The fact that we have
copies is another matter. That is an Official Secret issue. But let us leave that aside for a moment.
So, what we are really concerned with is one aspect. This Bill is meant for whom? Who do we want
to protect? Even if we include a chapter on the farmer, will the farmer’s right, his knowledge, his
across-the-board use be protected? The answer is the use of the word “discover” in Clause 2 ©. It is
actually a massive exercise in the poaching of the knowledge of the Indian farmer of the last five
millennia. I do not think you can run away from that. I could understand this if they had raised it.
Here, breeder means a person who has bred and developed any variety after taking an innovative
step and who does it for commercial reasons. It is well understood. There is something apart from
this. There is the Patent Law. It is not a question of novelty because novelty means “new” in this
context. It does not say that this person has taken an innovative step.

A m sk I I R fewEm W@

Therefore, I could understand it if two further qualifications are added saying that you want to
protect the breeder. I am not saying that you should do it. If you take the five seed companies, India
has no brief to protect them. I can understand your saying that you want to protect some of our
agricultural and scientific institutes. If scientific institutes are available, their knowledge should also
be available to everybody, and certainly to the farmer. But if you are protecting the breeder, then
there are only two contexts in which this protection would arise. The first is if they have takcn
innovative steps which amount to an invention, and the second is that you protect only ccrtain aspects
of their commercial activities.

To that extent what Shri Keayla said is absolutely correct. Once I have sold my property to you,
my right is exhausted. Therefore, a very pertinent question that was put to an earlicr tcam is about
the contract.

R Fmdd orR Rtk iRl i Wt w2 R L,
RN T9 9@ RV amm @ T Afwm

In other words, it is possible even to curtail by contract the farmer further. Section 31 will not
help him. If he has cntered into an agreement, Section 31 will not help him. Contractual option is
open. Please bear this in mind.

In another Chapter protecting the farmer without protecting his knowledge the word ‘discover’ is
going to have disastrous effect. ¥, e # &0 3 1 =wga ¥ A & WAW WA Y1 But to say you protect
the discovering breeder is to protcct the marauder who goes to every part of India, picks up the
knowledge of cveryone and say ¥ ¥ga $6 & 219® wft 5@ WAM I This cannot be the protection of
the farmer nor is Section 31 complete enough because of the quesiton of use. Yes, of course, farmer
use. When we met farmers and when we met people from Argentine who came in the earlier days,
they said that India has a wonderful advantage. If some wretched company wants to sue us, well let
them sue 400 million farmers. That is not the problem. What is my right?

Now, I come to the criminal provisions, if you do not mind. I am going to be brief. &g, R faw
@ § am Fuifiae e ¥ fog omoR g wgn WewA 3 ¥ A It can be done by a kind of trademark
regime. B 7% v Y-urd ¢ T P R W W THA ) M A sk i Awm t A smmam @, 1f
hc makes, it is up to him. So, we protect your trademark market but to protect you across the board
when you yourself are a poacher, that does not make scnse.

Take Chapter 14 which deals with infringement and Chapter 15 which deals with offences. I want
to makc onc gencral statement, if you do not kind because we have been studying this for a long
time. ¢ W AFRTRVR O ¥ A w9 IV MR # A ¥4 1 am not saying Dowry Act is justified or the
Untouchability Act is justified. MY 7o # & =% W W w @ | I

I do not think it is nccessary. It really is not neccssary. To criminalise everything is not a
necessary addenda to this at all. Of course, I will give the rest in written submission. These provisions

are draconian. WY ¥B W @ Tg @ N FAN



Look at the width of Clause 65:
“Whoever makes any representation in respect to the denomination of a variety....”

This is a very d.angerous provision because it is no comfort to somebody to say later on that I can
prove that I did it innocently. In all this you have a vast experience, far greater than any of us will

ever have now. 3 I3 ¥ 5 wema Al A dm A & A A 4, o W &R e €1 w e e

t— About .criminal procedure, which is headed — “process is the punishment”, the punishment is
not the punishment. Therefore, the question that we have to ask here as far as this criminal chapter is
concerned is that what Chapter 15 proccdure will it unleash? &l wien swht wyw ¢ fs e 3w 3 &
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I do not mind my saying so. I am firmly of the view that in all these legislations are of a
regulatory nature, apart from some arcas of social work where we cannot compromise—
untouchability cannot be compromised.

The question of SC/ST offences cannot be compromised. ¥R MY A RrR® W & A 3w I A
g &

This is certainly not on and let me say that all these offences, apart from the innocence clause,
are strict liability offences. In the case of TADA, it was said that it was written unknowingly. But the
Supreme Court had said that it is written unknowingly, but we would read it into TADA. All these
provisions have no element of mens rea in them, but only a defence of innocence. They are offences

of strict liability across the board.

Then, it is stated in Clause 62 that a particular person shall be deemed to falscly apply to the
denomination if he applies for such a denomination in a particular way. Noom Rk @dw

T

So, I would say that certainly this whole criminal arca has to be completely removed from this
Bill. It has no place in a statute of this nature. It is nothing more than a weapon in the hands of a
plant breeder. He will go and file a complaint and nothing can stop him. If it is an offence, it does
not say whether it is cognisable or not, but let us scc what the result will work out to be. He will go

and file a FIR and a friendly policeman will do the rest.
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In all our development statutes from the year 1950— T taortz B2 t1 s Wl Qv R 4
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So, this kind of a formula where the whole purpose of the statute is to benefit the breeder and to

hand over the area of criminal procedure to the breeder is not at all good. It is high time we grew out
but such a heavy criminal procedure does not exist even in heavy

icctunl oraany yimen W T B & § A W sk Eekw B |

intellectual property regimes.

Then, I am also a little worried about the infringcment part. You hardly ever get an injunction in

it wg @ S R ¢ R R W R e el R
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This Bill says that you can also get injunctive relief. Now, let us read Clause 31. What happens to
the farmer who is supposed to the ring leader in a particular area?

A HAY 100 T v B 31 A wd € e v 1o W dw w0 v T o 3y i) e W 2R
i e

It asks them to stop using a particular kind of seed half way through the sowing season. Awd
& R W s MW e AW W TN R

I can understand this injunctive rclief for further commercial use, but this broad power of
injunction is likely to be horrifyingly misused. 9% Refw R W w W v g

When we talk of benefit sharing, this Bill tries to do too many things in one clause. The issue of
biodiversity and the issue of the rights of farmers are too complex issues and what this Bill docs in the
various provisions on benefit sharing, which are contained in Clauses 26, 48 and 51, is to relegate the
person, who has been using this for centuries, to just get a little bit of money at the end of a long-
winded process.

Therefore, I do not believe that this Bill protects the community rights satisfactorily.

Lastly, I think, the institutions that have been created certainly need to be re-examined because a
development function has been given to the authority plus ultimately adjudicative function. This can
turn out to be a very problematic thing. I do not think the developmental function which has lots of
financial and problematic implications can be worked out that way. I entirely endorse this systcm of
Bills.

MW, W TFRRAMEFEMABIAVIRY AR afm wfF AT A A
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Thercfore, our submission is that there is no compulsion. There is a misreading of the TRIPS
Treaty when it comes to article 65 if it is being applied to another area for which it does not exist.
You have five years.

Number two, the definition of ‘breeder’ in terms of ‘discoverer’ is an invitation to poaching on
the traditional rights of the farmer. The farmer’s rights are protected in terms of sale. The total
knowledge of the farmer which will be poached is not protected and an extra chapter is not going to
do it.

Then, the injunctive provisions that you have are much too wide. If any rights is to be given, lct
him get his right to damages. The show must go on. Season after season, the farmer will have to do
what he likes. Let the persons prove what is wrong. I tell you that when the patents thing went to
America, they took us to the WTO. I was privileged to see America’s complaint against us in which
they said that they owed us several billion. You know, that case would have been dismissed in India.
They did‘not itemise what was the damage and in which area the damage was. Unfortunately, we
capitulated at the hearing. Therefore, that Ordinance had to be passed.

» My concern is that certainly any right for the farmer on an ongoing basis, his knowledge, his use,
even the threat of civil proceedings — as far as it is used — cannot be permitted. Even the coercive
sale simply cannot be permitted. The criminal provisions are out of place. The institutional
arrangements sprawl all over. This is a standard form of statute. That must be looked at. We are
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exganding. \\{e have over-written the provisions by a formula and all this is for the benefit of five
major actors in the world. We are going to arm them with the right to cheat, the right to take over

knowledge, the right to criminal intimidation in a legal network and the right to stop the farmer going
about his business.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very much.

e W FRAREL: 7 TR I o ¢ ok wgn A Al @ A, W w4 AR
g TR TN DN A T X aw R vk

MR. CHAIRMAN: We shall be very grateful if you give in detail what has been dicussed here,
that is, point-by-point.

DR. RAJEEV DHAVAN: You please give us a week. ¥ T% ¥R & % ¥

The Commitiee then adjourned.
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5. Dr. R.S. Paroda, Director General, ICAR,
New Delhi.
(The witnesscs were called in and they took their scats)
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MR. CHAIRMAN: The cxplanation is there in section 44. It says:
“For the purposes of clause (iv), branded seed means any seed put in a package or any othc.x:
container and labelled in a manner indicating that such sced is of a varicty protected under this Act.

What morc do you want?

R. VANDANA SHIVA: Branded sced will mean the brand of our trade market that a
- yw.mammuarnamwuwt,mumwh MWW
Fed 2 @ W W @ L1 @ = @ L1 Labelling should be delcted. Branded with a trade name
of corporation the trade mark of that corporation. #'/R R o vk ¢ @ vl W R e wew @

|
mmm:ﬁ[wﬁﬁ(w*mmhdmﬁm
e AT AWt WA R RNt Ry W R
xds gy
MR. CHAIRMAN: He can simply write it.
DR. VANDANA SHIVA: He cannot use the brand name of the corporation.
MR. CHAIRMAN: He can make a different labelling.
we ez fn: o @ X wewd am t W W e dww W @ W
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wwmfh wiwa: W W wEw A frem @ wfeg) It says:

“ For the purposc of Clause (iv), branded secd mcans any secd put in a package or any other
containcr and labelled in a manner indicating that such sced is of a variety protected under this Act.”

oft wfide Fqen: N fram wTEE W ¥ B, IER A AR A IR e B @M IER FLR T TR,
daE wmem, W AW A fam, wy fAftvm frdm feem W@ W@t W amRwd w1 @ v

aufy wea: TR dfe te @ T 3, A T2 @, @ = ferdm?
sit Wode Fmen: wrx W @ frdm W W feAfRve @

SHRI SHARAD PAWAR: But how will the problem be solved? See the last sentence. It is
written as “‘in a manner indicating that such sced is of a variety protected under this Act.” How will
you be able to give protcction?

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: The sced has bcen saved by a farmer and he wants to dispose of that
sced as he has surplus with him. He will not put the brand name but he will put its denomination.
Every variety is given a dcnomination and it will be identified by the denomination.

SHRI SHARAD PAWAR: Suppose I have a varicty of mucca and I utiliscd about two bags.
About onc-and-a-half bags is surplus with me. Supposc, I want to sell it in the market, then is it
allowed?

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: We can put the denomination, to sell it.
SHRI SHARAD PAWAR: But I can sell in thc open market.

SHRI B.K.KEAYLA: It can bc disposed of without brand name but by giving denomination.
The brecder gives the brand name and it is the requirement of law that every sced has to be given a
denomination.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What is your view, Dr. Paroda?

DR. R.S. PARODA: It is not necessary that in every case there should be a denomination or a
brand name.

Somectimcs, it could be only one produce like the Ganga-II which you have mentioned. There is
no numbcr given like H-347 or something like that—whether it is Ganga-II or whatever it is. The
qucstion that is being raiscd is so simple that if we permit farmers today, they will develop it. Others
will also be using the protected varieties. What is said is that whosoever is going to scll the seed, he
should not be allowed to usc the brand name. Whatever is proposed here is quite, right. According to
my undcrstanding, this provides a complete protection.

SHRI SHARAD PAWAR: Dr. Paroda, you just referred to Ganga-II and all that. What
guarantcc do I get about the quality of the seed? Anybody can cheat me.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: Let us stick to it.
wWmf TgEa: TR g B R R dn X Rl A w3, Wi W am 3 @ 3k ¥, It will help the

farmers. Also, the varicty will bc protected. That is what he feels. But Shri Sharad Pawar says it
cannot be.

.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Wc must provide here that the farmers will not sell it as a branded secd.
He will scll it by giving the dcnomination.

avafa wREa: R wam 2 f feym W, W w1 am T8 AN What could be that
identification? One can simply put it in a back. How will onc identify it? Without disturbing the
brceder’s right, how can we do it?

.

DR. S.D. SINGH: As per this Act, for registration of a plant variety, the breeder shall submit
before the Registrar a denomination of the breed. Suppose he says K-68 is his breed; he has produced



69

anq ‘dcvcl'opcd it and it should be registered with his name. If a farmer is pMudu it, he will not be
writing his name but he could writc that it is produccd by him in his farm whether it is K-68 or
somcthing like that. But he will not write his name.

W WE: e € R 3R IR & W@ @ 9w

_ SHRI BK. KEAYLA: wit fw 8, Every varicty has to be given a denomination. It is also
written. The denomination cannot be registered as the trade mark. It is only the brand name and not
the dcnomination which is prohibited here.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: We will sec how this language will be improved. This point is well taken.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Wc can take up Chapter VI—Farmers’ right. In the first placc, my
request is that we are crcating a number of varietics. There is a new varicty to be protected under the
TRIPPs agrccment. We are supposcd to protect ony thc ncw varicty. There arc various varictics
which we are unnccessarily covering under this law. The law that is requircd to be framed is for
giving protection to new varictics. Here, you are saying that farmers will enjoy Farmer varicty. #0

fAc ¢ fF 5ol o o dgd wa faw) @ @ &g e & R daw)

MR. CHAIRMAN: It is for a ncw variety. If you do not protect the breeders’ right, who will
breed.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Under the Act, all varictics arc being protected including farmers’
varicty. But so far as thc ncw varictics arc concerned, you have made a provision, the Government
will identify, protect and notify. National trcatment under WTO is also an angle—which includes a
varicty, which has not been developed so far, which has not come into the market, which has not
been sold, and not documented in the past that should only be protected.

MR. CHAIRMAN: But farmers' varicty and other varictics arc to be protected. If a8 company
comes and makes usc of all these varicties for developing a new varicty, what will be protected?

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Brceder will take permission.. for derived varicty in linked to his

rotected varicty. Same protections will be availablc till lhc cnd of t.hat tcrm as far farmers’ right, the
f')igh!s and privilege farmer enjoy, hitherto he should continuc to cnjoy. A dfifrz daftn w ‘g s

mt.aaﬁmmt.mwmmmmnmtammmmme.macm
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st oft.3. daen: > A 39 WA W W § AN ¥ wR A JwA 28(1) A R gan & B GRTR wER WY
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Now On pagec 18, Article 28(9) reads as follows:

“(9) Without prejudice to thc registration under sub-section (4), the terms of
registration—

(a) may be varicd by the Registrar as regards the variety in respect of which, or any
condition or restrictions subject to which, it has effect...”

2y ¥ s gdwa #) wm ¥ @y @wa T OM This also has to be looked into. National
trecatment % YR W {@ F@ I @

avfy wgew: T8 @ R b

¥, a< frmn: &wgdw & Afewd &/ FOM1 The initial laws should be identified in the Bill. You
can start with five varieties. You can start with 15 varieties. We can choose five or ten varicties and
those initial laws and varieties could be identificd.

wwafa wiia: N Ted 0, WER 3 O &4 Instead of specifying the number of varieties, the best
thing is that we lcave it to the Government. If we feel that there is something wrong in registering
more varietics, then, the Government can immediately say that it could be only up to this.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: The Central Government shall, by notification in the Official Gazette,
specify the genera or species.

AU wREE: A e @ T a1, e andt e #) weR Rfvwd woh

SHRI BIPLAB DASGUPTA: You wanted these to be substituted only by plain varietics. What
diffcrence does it make?

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA:... The UPOV convention says that you can start that with limited
numbers. This is onc angle. The other angle is that we are not yet recady with codification.
Codi.ication is a massive job. If we say that we identify 20 varieties, where is the codified matcrial
with us for these 20 varieties to judge the claims?

MR. CHAIRMAN: ...About a particular branch, it is limited to five, eight or ten varieties.

SHRI BIPLAB DASGUPTA: If you join a convention, there will be something binding on the
basis of that convention.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Let me complete.

Now, I come to Chapter III.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: You are going backwards.
MR. CHAIRMAN: They are giving preference to farmers.
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sh W& Foen: v dwn w® W 1 [ will read section 3(a), it says:

“Novel, if at the date of filing the application for registration for protection, the

p;opagating or harvest material of such varicty has not been sold or otherwise disposcd
of....”

T & T SN N OTERE D wm ¢ R w Wed e W wdh
MR. CHAIRMAN: Shri Singh, is this all right? -

SHRI S.D. SINGH: Documentation is required only in the field of research. Here I do not think
documentation is required.

DR. R.S. PARODA: Documentation has to be defined in that case. It has to be public
documentation and not documented in some laboratories, etc.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You are saying that instcad of ‘documentation’, it has to be ‘public
documentation’.

SHRI R.C.A. JAIN: The criteria for novclty is requircd only for a new variety. If something has
been documented and not becn sold, in that case it should not be debarred from being registcred.
The criteria of documentation is not required to be added. It is not in regard a farmer variety and it is
only for a new variety.

DR. VANDANA SHIVA: The response that has come from Shri Jain is absolutcly readymade.
TR fr T @, T SEHYA B T v, e 3T 8, Teeh wR aw o do @ we v 0 ¢ @ el W
@A FF F | Documentation is absolutely important.

SHRI R.C.A. JAIN: In case of any variety, the breeder will have to clcar the passport. If it is a
farmer's variety, it will come on record and a new variety has to be introduced. So, it is not necessary
that the same thing has been documented. It should be prevented from being registered. The only
legitimate thing is to ask for a share in the benefit.

~ DR. VANDANA SHIVA: The result of the proposal basically is that a seed variety that is
available today for farmers is there. Mostly for farmers, now it is a protected variety. The company
makes five million dollars out of the sales.

But in the meantime, the farmers are generating that market of five million. That burden of new

cost is going on to the farmers and farmers do not end up becoming a monopoly property of the
corporations. That is preciscly why we need all these definitions for recognition. What he is

suggesting is a practical mechanism.
SHRI BHASKAR BARUAH: That would depend on the merits of cach case.
SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: We havce fought the cases abroad on the basis of documentation.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: We arc not discussing the beneficiary. We are discussing the
definition of novelty What is novelty? We can define it further.

SHRI LALITHBHAI MEHTA: What is the legal tcrtpinology used? Suppose the word
‘documentation’ is used, it means it is the public documentation.

DR. R.S. PARODA: Public knowledge is always required and it must be put s condition for
any documentation. In that context, we can put appropriatcly that kind of requirement.

SHRI LALITHBHAI MEHTA: Then, you use the words “publicly documented™.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Then, Sir, explanation under clause ‘b’ says that *‘...varieties in any
convention country”. It can be ‘any other country’. It is on page 10.

in limitati k to the definition
DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: Patent has certain llmllltIO?. l.f we have to worl : n,
why do you bring in all thesc things? What is the hurdle in it? Is novelty on commercial basis?
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SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: These arc relcvant for plant varicty but thcse are not relevant for
industrial product. It is rclevant for agricultural product.

DR. BIPLAB DASGUPTA: Can any farmer ensure uniformity?

SHRI BHASKAR BARUAH: Uniformity is not necessarily to the point of decimal. As far as
uniformity is concerned, the criteria is only for ncw variety and not for extant varicty. We are within
the power to devisc a strategy which will take into account the variations.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You should takc it into consideration.

st &g, wwa: KT, A oF © am W wE §, o9 AR ) gom 3, v o & R s
& wmn § ) v e W A §, e @ D om o & 4 ¥ e e 3 e 8, 3wt fvan gan R, We can

expect certain amount of precision in those things.

MR. CHAIRMAN: But he says about only extinct variety; some uniformity should be there. M
o W A R M IR TEd e aw @ ok A §-ge gan 3, I feed w2

it Fym. wm: A A wem ¢ R AN A weidvw § I A W @

DR. R.S. PARODA: For any registration or for notification of a variety, it must be very well
distinct. It should be uniform. In the context of living society and extinct varieties about which we are
talking, some relaxation of procedurcs can be evolved for anything new, whether it comes from a
farmer or from a brceder and it must have a distinct form. It must be uniform and it must also be
suitable.

aumfa whEe: FeR @ fm O W wEg & ¥, I W @ @

DR. VANDANA SHIVA: You can extend it to the other farmer varicties also. It may be done
so that farmers will not be put to any difficulties marginally. I am talking from the point of view of
the farmers.

st & ue wua: v weld o T e e

MR. CHAIRMAN: 3 &rfd ®) 7 78 8f & &@m w30 f6 s oz # @ 81 Then they will put
mc bchind the bars. That is what I mentioned carlier also. But what I fecl is that nowhere in the
other bills it is there. We have studicd about 35 Bills of the other countrics. They have made no
mcention of the farmers’ rights. If you do not mind the farmers’ rights then the farmers will be in a
bad position. He will gct a sharc. He will be free from registration. So many things are there in this
Bill.

st F.g@. wum : da i e & afuwd @ wa ¥ ok oy W W R R RRERT & afied @ o @
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SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Plcase scc article 15(3)(b& It should not be restricted to convention
country 3R aféFa 17 ¥ W &gd N RAfTE T | FeYE @ company A WS W ff 2 ¥

sffwa 18(1)(a) A g dvwd @ dAfowd won wwd R

MR. CHAIRMAN: This is a form of application for all sorts of registration. We are mentioning
ncw varicties. It means other varieties which are registered.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Pleasc ..e article 19. I quote:

“Every applicant shall, along with the application for registration made under this Act, make
available to the Registrar such quantitics of sceds of a variety for registration of which such
application is made of, for the purpose of conducting tests to evaluate whether such variety
along with parental material conform to the standards as may be specified by regulations.”

So, for test purposes they have to give relevant technical data also.
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SHRI BHASKAR BARUA: We can repeat it. If it is there, we will provide.
SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: If you do not do it, he can take shelter of this not being there.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Sir, I now come to the next Chapter. My submission is that we are
going to protect the limited varieties. We are going to create an authority with many more members.
The Bill is not for a much larger domain than industrial patents. We have the Controller Gehcral of
Patents, Design and Trade Marks. Here also, my submission is that there is no need of any
authority. There is only the nced of a Registrar General. They the ex-officio members have no
direct responsibility as such. If at all we have to create an authority, you create it with two or threc
members. They should be permanent members with specific angle of work and responsibility. They
will be accountable.

wwmafh wEEG: S FE W weew § 6 aRA W s T € ok s T € B B et B
ft Ao Fgem: s ¥
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SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Sir, the sced industry is a concerned party. So, a member of seed
industry should not be there on it. They are the interested party.

|avnfr wRiTa: S FR W vaem € B @t R daw T o Wi @ ow &2
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qvfa TR TR A gEE ad, et IR AR Rt AR et wR e
tcufl

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: I will now come to the Chapter VII on compulsory licence system. Sir
this system becomes weak when we provide for an appeal. Any compulsory. licence taken by any
party, which is compulsory licence all over the world, has ‘rcmaincd operative Pccause there has
been a provision for appeal. In our law we have a prpvisnon for compglsory licence 'and glso a
liccnsing of right system. Licence of right is a legal ng.h.t. The only thing to !?e decided is th.e
compensation payable to the right-holder. That provision should also remain here argd this
compulsory licence, if it is appcalable, every decision will go in for appcal. The appeal will lie with
the Tribunal and then to the High Court. It is not that the High Court was unnecessary. I checked
up with the Law Commission and they said that the High Court has to be there because the Supreme
Court has decided that any decision by a Tribunal can go in for appeal to the High Court.

Earlicr there was a provision for going to the Supreme Court. So, if we havc.a provi'sion fot
appcal against compulsory licence, it will remain only on paper. So, we should provide for licensing
of right. At least for farmers and universities it should be there.

i icle 51, you have said that the Authority shall determine the dumiqn of th.c
e, e ys regard, I would submit that the duration of a compulsory licence is
i i i ight-holdcr. That is the provision for

always co-ferminus with the term of the ‘nght of the rigl
comgulsory licence and licensing of systems right. If there are 10 or 15 ycars left and the compulsory
licence is given for two years, it will have no meaning. The situation worldwide is that compulsory
licence is given which is co-terminus with the term of the right given to the right-holder to avoid

repetition of earlicr situation.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It is alrcady there.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Then, article 52 talks of rcasonable remuneation . { T4 W WAYA
Ry R EE AR, WA Esee @z 7 @@ WA 81 Otherwise, reasonableness is always

debatable.

compulsory licence. In thi
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MR. CHAIRMAN: f)o you want us to mention it? We arc Icaving it to thc Authority.
SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Then, I would submit that section 57-c should be dcleted.
w57 (c) % oA ® adi T ¥+ =fEwi That is all I have to say. Thank you.
MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you.

MR rmr e Ids N s et Fgndm @}, @
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MR. CHAIRMAN: The Authority will see that he sclls it at a reasonable price.
SHRI K.L. JADHAV: Will there by any control of the Authority?
MR. CHAIRMAN: Yes. We have made a provision.

it Wte e Faem: Frm e | Mo ¥ e fam TR 4 T IR @ A W f wAYR @ w2
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fccling about it. They are worried that the farmers would be hit hard. They have a sympathctic
attitudc towards the farmers.

SHRI PIRTHI SINGEF. VATS: Chapter X dcals with infringement. If you sce clausc 68,
there is an exccption. it says:

“68 (1) No suit—

(a) for the infringcmaient of a variety registered undcr this Act; or
(b) relating to any right in a variety registered under this Act,

shall be instituted in any court inferior to a District Court having jurisdiction to try the suit.

(2) For the purpose of clause (a) and (b) of sub-section (1), “District Court having jurisdiction”
shall, notwithstanding anything contained in the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 or any other law
for the time being in force, includes a District Court within the local limits of whose jurisdiction,
at the time of the institution of the suit or proceeding, the person instituting the suit or other
proceeding, or, where there are more than one such person any of them actually and voluntarily
resides or carries of business or personally works for gain.”

Here, it is an exception. Normally, the Code of Civil Procedure provides that the suit shall be
filed at the place where the defendant resides or where the cause of action has arisen. This exception
will complicate the matters because the persons concerned can file their claims in their respective
places against those who are residing somewhere else. Therefore, this right should not be given to a
person who is alleging that his rights have been infringed. The suit should be filed at that place where
the cause of action has arisen or where a person is alleging that his right has been infringed.

DR. S$.D. SINGH: It is very difficult to decide where the cause of action has arisen. It is only to
decide the jurisdiction that this provision has been made. This provision allows us to decide the
jurisdiction on the basis of ‘residence’.

MR. CHAIRMAN: But in the Code of Civil Procedure, usually, the jurisdiction is decided on
the basis of ‘cause of action’.

DR. S.D. SINGH: Similar provisions exist elsewhere also, like in the provisions dealing with
intellectual property rights etc.
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SHRI PIRTHI SINGH VATS: This provision can be misuscd by a person who wants to implicate
a farmer who is residing somewhere elsc. Suppose, a farmer is staying at a place which is one
thousand kilometres away, and a person, who wants to misuse this provision will file his suit at a
place of his choicc. How will you avoid that?

AW wgee: am dw wm owe @ R

SHRI PIRTHI SINGH VATS: If it is CPC, what is wrong in it?
I think, we should follow the CPC. There should not be any exccption to that.

DR. VANDANA SHIVA: Sir, herc we arc talking about subjects that would very often go
against thc farmers. That is why, the considcration of the farmers' intcrests should be of absolute
importance. I think, retaining rights of the dcfendant, as under the CPC, should really be there.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That would be idcal. It is a good point. I agrec on that point.
SHRI PIRTHI SINGH VATS: Sir, now [ would invite your attention to clausc 69(2) (c). It says,

“restraining the defendant from disposing of or dcaling with his asscts in a manncr which may
adverscly affcct plaintiffs ability to rccover damages, costs or other pecuniary remedics which

may be finally awarded to the plaintiff”.

It mcans that if somebody has some asscts and for certain rcasons wants to disposc it and if some
persons file a suit saying that it is an infringcment to the extent of Rs. 20 lakhs then this would be an
unnccessary incumbrance. The Court may dircct that he may not sell his property or may not even
mortgage it. Such like, it should be left to the ordinary courts of law. As is usual, in such like cascs, it
should not be a restraint order not to scll thc property.

DR. S.D. SINGH: Sir, in that case, when the Court would award a decrec, how is it possible to
rccover the property of same extent? For that purpose, the Court would pass an injunction order.
There could be attachment of the property before judgement. When alrcady the law cxists, why
should there be a restraint order? Why is this restraint order in the casc of the court without any

critcria as to what should be the guidelines?

SHRI BHASKAR BARUA: There is alrcady a provision for it in the ordinary law. Let it
prevail. Why should there be a special provision in that? If there is a provision for attachment before
judgement as per normal CPC, then that should be adequate.

SHRI PIRTHI SINGH VATS: The poor farmer may be victimised.

FWIR Wi AW W w@ @ 8, T % am b

SHRI PIRTHI SINGH VATS: Why not a civil actionable claim? Why should it not be restricted
to penalty and offences? It is an ordinary farmer.

wwﬁlﬂilmzmaﬁfmtzmﬁmmt,mﬁfmtzat,ahm:m1

SHRI PIRTHI SINGH VATS: I havc a last point. Sincc the provisions of pcnalty and offcnces
can be misused for criminal prosecution, let it be compensated by civil action, by damages. (;ivil suit
is alrcady there. Restraint order is already there. I feel that somcwhere down t!w linc the innocent
farmer will fall prey to this provision of criminal prosccution as a result of which hc may have to

lcave his land and go over to jungles.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What do you think is nceded here?

SHRI PIRTHI SINGH VATS: This pcnalty clausc requircs to be rcmoved.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Alrcady there is a provision that if a farmer docs somcthing unknowingly, he
will not be brought to book. -
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SHRI PIRTHI SINGH VATS: It does not work that way. Section 77 says:

“The provision of this Act relating to offences shall be subject to the right crcated as
recognised by this Act and no act or omission shall be deemed to be an offence under
the provisions of this Act if such act or omission is permissible under this Act.”

This is very uncertain. This makes no sense.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: Why should this be retained when the actionable suit is there to the
extent of any amount?

stz A v fran gen d—
“(i) a right established under this Act shall not be deemed to be infringed by a farmer
who at the time of such infringement was not aware of the existence of such right;

(ii) a relicf which a court may grant in any suit for infringement referred to in section 68
shall not be granted by such court against a farmer who proves, before such court, that
at the time of the infringement he was not aware of the existence of the right so
infringed.”

In the light of this, section 77 can be deleted.
SHRI R.C.A. JAIN: Yes, Sir. In the light of 43,77 can be deleted.
SHRI PIRTHI SINGH VATS: Yes. Section 43 can be modified.

SHRI R.C.A. JAIN: There are too many redundant laws in here and 77 is one such. Farmer is
protccted by section 43.

SHRI R.K. TRIVEDI: We may delete 77.

SHRI PIRTHI SINGH VATS: Even otherwise, this only saves the farmers from civil action
and not from the criminal offences. It never deals or protect him from the criminal prosecution and
penalty for offence.

When the matter is before the Court, many interpretation will take place. It simply speaks of
the civil offcnce only.

MR. CHAIRMAN: How do you improve this?

SHRI PIRTHI SINGH VATS: There is rights to infringe. So, it will also apply in case of
offences and penalties for criminal prosecutions. It will be so applicable as well in case of
prosecution for fine and penalties.

SHRI R.C.A. JAIN: This can be added in section 43.

SHRI PIRTHI SINGH VATS: Criminal proceedings are very hard as compared to civil
proceedings.

MR. CHAIRMAN: All right. It is also done.

SHRI PIRTHI SINGH VATS: He is also to be saved in the light of section 43 by adding that
it will also apply to the bona fide, it must be applicable in cases of criminal offences.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Is there any harm if we do so?
SHRI BHASKAR BARUA: No, Sir.
MR. CHAIRMAN: The Secretary says that there is no harm. So we can do it.
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DR. S.D.. SI!‘IGH: I am referring to section 77. It is an overriding provision. It has an overriding
effect. So, while interpreting, the court will read every section. This section 77 will be given priority.

MR. CHAIRMAN: All right. We will review it.

SHRI PIRTHI SINGH VATS: Now, the only point is to save him from the criminal proceodings.
The last words of section 80 says:

‘Explanation—For the purpose of this section—

“(a) company” means any body corporate and includes a firm or other association of
individuals; and

(b) *“director” in relation to a firm, means a partner in the firm.’

Here, it must be a person having active partner. Usually, in our course of businesses, there are
sleeping partners. They are not attached with any activities. He must be a managing partner. He must
be some what in a managerial capacity. ’

MR. CHAIRMAN: It is right.
SHRI R.C.A. JAIN: Then, there is no need to give extra protection to the sleeping partner.

SHRI PIRTHI SINGH VATS: ‘A person with a bona fide of intent.’ We are analysing a case. A
bona fide person is intended to be a sleeping partner. It does not mean that the liability should be
extended in cases of criminal liability when he has nothing to do with it. On the basis of a recent case, I
say that it is a matter of interpretation.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Now, Shrimati Vandana Shiva may make her submission.
DR. VANDANA SHIVA: I want to make three very quick and brief points.

I think, there should be a differentiation of what action should be directed towards competing
companices and business and what is to be directed at farmers. Already, the farmers are selling off their
kidneys to repay debts. They are already committing suicide. The exemption under clause 43 is only
when he did not know of the rights. Suppose he knew of the rights, even there, there should be a
distinction because the economic status of a small farmer and a competing manufacturer are very

different. I think, you should qualify what would be the quantum. I believe that the farmers should be
totally exempted from any criminal action. 3 W !lmﬂlg firer s ¢, IEd W W el e © vt

Under the Bio-diversity Bill, the benefit-sharing mechanism would be over. So, unless you address
the distortions in the Bio-diversity Bill, this Bill would be futile.

All over the country, we are finding increasing levels of spurious seeds. I think, there should be
some clause on the liability of the seed companies. So, a liability clause should be added.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: In the definition, we have provided for a ‘convention country’. A
‘convention country’, it says on page 2, ‘mecans a country which has acceded to an international
convention for protection of plant varicties.’ It is an international convention for plant varietics to
which India has not to accede. India has not yet acceded to it. I think, by this kind of provision, we
are trying to take some kind of an approval since there would be a possibility for the Government of
India to become a member of the UPOV convention. It is a dangerous convention in the scnse that
whatever is provided there on the convention will have to be implemented.

SHRI R.K. TRIVEDI: ‘Any other country with which India has a bi’llfeul arrangement for
protection of plant varieties’—hcre, we are keeping all options open. We may join or we may not join.

SHRI K.L. JADHAYV: India has already acceded.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: You have defined ‘convention country’ in article 31. That should be

repeated here.
lﬁi:omem:wﬁmwﬁnsﬁmy#uﬂmmtvt,ﬂmp
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SHRI B. K. KEAYLA: My last submission is that internationally many developing countrics have
taken up with the WTO about extension of transitional period and also about the problems of
implementation. This issue is pending before the General Council. Here, what we are doing is that we are
implementing it. We can also ask for extension and we can state the difficulties. If we arc going to
implement them as it is, then there will be nothing to state. But why is there this hastc when we have a
ten-year period to go in for this kind of legislation, under article 65 (4) of TRIPS? We are only in the sixth
year and we are now trying to push this law. We should see whether it is going to benefit us or it is going to
create problems for us.

Then, article 27(3)(b) is also under review. It is about the obligation to make this law. It is yet to be
reviewed, that is, the review is on. Why should we make this law now?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Actually, it was discussed. Dr. Paroda was present in a meeting and it was felt
that the earlier we do it, type better it is for us. It was further said that it would help our country in a big
way. They have given their views as to why did they say so. If you want to hear something straight from
Dr. Paroda, we can request him to say a few points on that.

SHRI BHASKAR BARUA: If you permit, I would like to make only one point and then I would
leave, since I have to go urgently.

We feel that this law is for our benefit; this law should be considered. This law should be there, for
the benefit of the Indian scientists, reagrdless of any international considerations.

This is the one single point that I would like to make, before I leave. DR. Paroda would explain to
you as to why it is so and other things.

DR. R. S. PARODA: With your permission, I would cover a few other arcas.

First of all, we have been thoroughly involved. We agree to most of the amendments proposcd here.
In that context, I do not have much to contribute except for a few further improvements and refincments.
That is with regard to Chapter-I, at page 2. We are mentioning Chairman of the authority. I think that it
would be appropriate if we mention here as Chairperson because it has to be gender neutral. It could be
any gender and thus, it should not be gender specific.

SHRI LALITBHAI MEHTA: In the legal terminology, ‘man’ includes ‘women’. So, I feel that it is
not necessary. Legal persons are present here and if we take the legal opinion, we would be clear.
Otherwise, whenever we speak of ‘man’, it includes ‘women’. This issuc has come up alrcady and it was
decided like this.

DR. KOCHAR: There were two things. One is the Chairman and the other is the Chairperson.
Chairman is for the Tribunal and ‘Chairperson is for the Authority. So, there should not be any mention
about these two, in the same set of definitions. It should not be there and both could be avoided. There
can be a reference to the Chairperson of the Authority or the Chairman of the Tribunal. There were
public objections to such usage and it was advised that there should not be any gender bias.

SHRI LALITBHAI MEHTA: When we were discussing the Information Technology Bill, this point
was raised by some hon. Members; and the Secretary of the Law Department who happens to be a legal
luminary opined that ‘man’ includes ‘women’. So he said that wherever the word ‘man’ appears, it should
be kept as it is.

DR. R.S. PARODA: { do not dispute that point. When we are saying technical member we are
defining it later at 29(3) as a scientist.

DR. S. D. SINGH: This is for distinguishing between the technical member and judicial member.
MR. CHAIRMAN: Scientist is alrcady there.

DR. R. S. PARODA: It is indicated that the Chairperson to be appointed shall be a person of
outstanding calibre and eminence with long practical experience of at least fifteen ycars. Why should we
define it by saying fifteen years. Long experience is sufficient. There is no need for fifteen years.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: Yes, we can rcmove fifteen. ¢

DR. R.S. PARODA: This Authority would require expertise in plant varicties. This is a Plant
Variety Act. Why should we say related development? We should leave it there by saying ‘plant
varicty research’. Otherwise, tomorrow anybody will come and do it. Even a seed producer will do it.
Whereas one need specialisation in that field.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Yes, we will see to it.

DR. R. S. PARODA: The other point is that at page 27 it is mentioned, “The Authority may by
order direct any breeder to deposit such quantity of seeds or propagating material including parental
line seeds as may be specified in the regulations for reproduction purposes at the breeder’s expense
within such time as may be specified in that order.” Now, we are not defining it very clearly. We
have to define it clearly.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We can go further.

DR. R.S. PARODA: Further, it is said, “Subject to the other provisions of this Act a certificate
of registration for a variety issued under this Act shall confer an exclusive right on the breeder or his
successor, his agent or licensee, to produce, sell, market, distribute, import or export the variety”.

In this context, I would like to say that we cannot allow a person to go on importing. There can
be a small quantity of import but not of large quantities.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It is in the interest of our farmers.

DR. R.S. PARODA: Then, he will say that he would import these things rather than producing
them. Then he will say that he will bring it from abroad.

SHRI LALITBHAI MEHTA: Both should be deleted.
SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Trips does not allow the exclusive right on export. We can delete both.

DR. R.S. PARODA: Please refer to page 21, 36(1)
Why can we not have one-time fee? Why can we not fix the fec? RFam W dm ¢ wem
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DR. R.S. PARODA: You are giving him the right for 15 to 18 years. You can fix up some
ainount.

SHRI R.K. TRIVEDI: It is difficult to get the fee for the entire 18 years.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It can be once in three or five years.
DR. R.S. PARODA: A provision should be there that they have to go for rencwal in five years.

mﬁnﬁw:mmwmmﬁtuﬂqmwmaﬂm
SHRI B. K. KEAYLA: It is written here as, ‘fec by way of royalty’. It should be only “fee”

SHRI LALITBHAI MEHTA: Royalty goes with production. If you do not have any production,
there will not be any royalty.

. j Isory licence, we say: ‘the
DR. R.S. PARODA: Please refer to Page 28. When you give compu . .

authority will decide reasonable royalty and other remuneration... and expendx'ture mcuned. in
approaching the authority’. So, he will give all the exaggerated figures for approaching the authority.

SHRI B. KEAYLA: It should not be left ‘reasonable’. There should be some ceiling.

DR. R.S. PARODA: We must not incorporate here that we will be compensating him for the

expenses incurred in approaching the authority.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: What about the compensation?

DR. R.S. PARODA: The authority can decide that.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We should eliminate this. We will decide the reasonable compensation.
SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: Sir, the reasonableness will always be contested.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Then what should we do?

DR. R.S. PARODA: Sir, now I come to Gene Fund. In this context, we must try to look into
the possibilities by which this Gene Fund can be reasonably built.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I may tell you the suggestion sent by Prof. M.S. Swaminathan in this regard.
He has said that the funds available under the National Gene Fund will be very limited. The regular
insitu and exsitu conservation activities of the Central and State Governments should be met from the
budget of the concerned Departments of Government. The funds available under the National Gene
Fund should be use to recognise, reward and revitalise the insitu onfarm conservation traditions of
rural and tribal women and men.

DR. R.S. PARODA: Sir, on the lines of cess, something should be earmarked for the Gene
Fund.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What could be that?

DR. R.S. PARODA: Sir, it could be one per cent of the total salc.

SHRI R.K. TRIVEDI: Sir, it would be difficult to collect as the States are also involved in it.
MR. CHAIRMAN: Yes. I have discussed it with you earlier also.

SHRI R.K. TRIVEDI: Sir, we would require manpower for collecting it from all over the
country.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let us see how we can incorporate this suggestion.

DR. R.S. PARODA: Sir, definitely it would be desirable to harmanise it with the Bio-diversity
Act. I would like to submit that the suggestion there should also be a fund on the Bio-Diversity side
and we nced not get ourselves linked with that fund. This fund has to be on the basis of our own
resource. It must be separate. It must not be linked with that.

The last point is the response to the question as to why we cannot wait for another five years.
SHRI SHARAD PAWAR: This issue was also discussed.

DR. R.S. PARODA: Even for the farmers varieties we want to protect them. Otherwise we will
have no instrument by which we can fight for them in international fora.

SHRI B.K. KEAYLA: If you are going to have an authority, then the Registrar General should
not be appointed by the authority. He should be appointed by the Government. He is going to hold a
high powered position. If you leave his appointment to the authority, it would not be a wise decision.
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(The meeting then adjourved)
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suggestions are welcome. If you have any sort of improvement which are in the interests of the
country and its farmers, we have no problems in accepting them.

The hon. Member Shri N.R. Dcsari has written a letter to me submitting a note of dissent. He
had desired that a copy cach of this lettcr may be submitted to its Mcmbers. We are going to
circulate it to you just now. Everybody is welcome to give suggestions. 88 WE e A ¥ g €0 T
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DR. I. V. SUBBA RAO: Thank you, Sir.

I got the communication only yesterday and so, I could not send a note earlier. Today, I brought
a hand-written draft, a copy of which has been given to you.

At the outset, I thank the Chairman for having given me this opportunity to interact.with the
Members here. I remember, we have given a note earlier in the month of March; subsequently, we
had an intcraction with the Chairman and the Members of the Committce. The Committee also
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visited Hyderabad. There again, we have given some more suggestions. After going through the draft,
I thought, we must bring to the notice of the Committee, a few more points.

First of all, I thank the Committee for including Chapter VI “Farmers’ Rights and the
Reconstitution of the Authority” which included a number of representatives from various
organisations unlike the original draft. Now, farmers' representatives are there, representatives from
the universities are there.

I w9uld like to bring to the notice of the Committee, a few more points. In Chapter I, section 2,
sub-section (q), the definition may be broad-based to include hybrids, which are popular, bit not
rclcased and their parents, clones, composites and synthetics also.

In Chapter II, section (a), we feel that there is a need to have a State Authority, similar to the
Central Authority, since the State Varicty Relecase Committee releases a number of varicties
devcloped and released at the State level. For example, in my own university, we have already
releascd 270 varieties, in addition to the onces that we have already.

Then, in section 3, sub-section (5) (ix), we feel that instead of one representative of the farmer,
there may be two farmers’ representatives. There could be individual farmers and representatives of
national and State level farmers' organisations. We feel that these are mostly political things and thus,
probably, we may not get true rcpresentation of the farming community. Thercfore, we feel that in
addition to what has been written there, we can think of including individual farmers, not necessarily
representing organisations. We further feel that since we have nearly 31 agricultural universities,
instead of one person, we may think of including two persons representing agricultural universities.

Of course, we have other things like the frequency of meetings of the Authority and the quorum
for the meetings, etc. which were not indicated. Probably, the statutes and rules may come

subsequently.

Now, I would like to refer to Chapter II. Here, my sugestion is that a State level plant varietios
registry should be established through this Bill for each State which should be attached to the national
level registry.

Coming to Chapter III, scction 15 sub-section 1, I would like to suggest that ‘novely’ needs to be
further defined keeping in tune with the document of the UPOV, 1978. Otherwise, some looscness
will exist in the definition.

In Chapter IV, under duration we have included trees and vines. We fecl that shrubs should also
be included as indicated in UPOV, 1978 document. There are a good number of shrubs available in
our own country.

In Scction 24, sub-section b(ii), the period of validity mcntionc.d is fifteen years. Since tpis plant
breeding is a dynamic process, fiftecn years may be too long a period. So, we suggest that it should
be ten ycars instcad of fifteen years.

In Chapter V, we would like to sugest that we should include institutes, agriculture universitics
after the word ‘breeder’ and before ‘agent or licensee’.

; i ittee for having a separate Chapter

Coming to Chapter VI, I would like to congrgtulatc the Commi
on farmcrs'grights. gut this provision could be misused by the non-farmers also. So, there should be
some in-build provision to eliminatc the possible misuse by the non-farmers. Then, farmers should
have access to hybrids. Some provision should be made to meet this requircment. In section 42(1)

i “wi i Central Government...”. We feel
i ision which says, “with the previous l.pprov"al of the
:ﬁﬁt:?sam‘;;o:::o:c ncccssar);'. since this Authority itself is a body of the Central Government, there

is no need for a separate permission from the Central Government.

The Seeds Act, 1966 needs to be amended on priority to fall in line with

Coming to Chapter X/, there will be a lot of scope for confusion and misuse of

the PPV and FR Bill, 1999. Otherwisc,
provisions under this Act.
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Moreover, the Authority should have the right to regulate the prices. If a company protects a
very valuable material and demands a very high price, the Authority should have the right to use the
material deposited with it.

These are the few suggestions which I wanted to make. Thank you.
MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very much for your very valuable suggestions.

SHRI P.K. SINGH: This is a very well drafted document. We had given our suggestions and
those suggestions have been incorporated in this. We do not have any additional suggestion to make.
We only wish that it is approved as carly as possible and is implemented so that the farmers and
breeders are benefited out of it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you. We are also waiting for it.

DR. P.K. MISHRA: Thank you for giving us an opportunity to express our views. The
Committee had visited Gujarat earlier when we gave a number of suggestions. I am happy to note
that many of them have been incorporated. The other witnesses have also given some suggestions. I
would only like to mention two or three points.

Firstly, it was mentioned that there should be a State authority.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The authority could be only one. Of course, therec will be branches in
different States. Powers will be delegated to them and they will work just like the authority.

DR. P.K. MISHRA: This will serve the purpose.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I think many of the suggestions given by you and your friends have been
incorporated in the draft Bill.

DR. P.K. MISHRA: Regarding compulsory cataloguing in clause 82(d), I would like to say that
we are not sure whether compulsory cataloguing should be there or not.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is in the interest of everybody. If we could do that, it would be a
wonderful thing. Shri Paroda is also working on it. I think that is a necessity.

DR. P.K. MISHRA: That is basically data-base.
In clause 42, there is a provision for compensation, if the yield is less.

MR. CHAIRMAN: He will have to prove that though all the conditions have been fulfilled, he
could not have that much yield.
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DR. MEHTA: I feel there are one or two points worth mentioning in this very well drafted
document.

As far as the State level authority is concerned, I quite agree that we should have the National
Authority and the branches in the State should have the representatives from the State agricultural
universities. In the same way I believe in the National Authority, instead of one there should be two
representatives from fhe universities. Probably, there should be two members from farmers’
community and one from NGO and one from cooperative. As far as validity is concerned, now I was
just wondering about the developments which have taken place five years or three years back. Maybe,
we can make it 10 years or 12 years. Probably, that would be appropriate. These are some of the
suggestions which I wanted to make.

DR. R.D. MULEY: Sir, in Mumbai, there were a long discussion on the issue and many
suggestions were submitted during the course of discussion. Subsequently, we have forwarded
comments of different organisations and Universities to the Committee. I would like to suggest one or
two points regarding the extant variety. There is a possibility of any a company claiming to have
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developed an extant variety. In order to avoid it, there should be some provision for having a joint
registration authority. One registering authority could be of the University of that particular area
from which that extant variety comes. Otherwise, some company may claim that a particular variety
has been developed by taem.
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DR. R.D. MULEY: Sir, now-a-days, sceds are bcing imported by many companies. there is no
provision in the present Bill for the rcgulation of the imported seeds. I think that should be
considered in this draft.

Sir, thers should be an organisation to test the claims of whic varietics. Then validity of the
registration should for 5 years instead of three years.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The thinking of the Committee is that it should bc at the mid of the total
term. If the term is 12 years, the registration would be after six years and if it is 15 years, it would be
-after seven and a half years. We have already considcred this.

MR. CHAIRMAN: So, we will mect again on 17th August, 2000 at 9 a.m. Thank you.
(The mccting then adjourned)





